Public Document Pack

Civic Centre,
Arnot Hill Park,
Arnold,
Nottinghamshire,
NG5 6LU

Agenda
Cabinet
Date:

Thursday 2 August 2018

Time:

12.30 pm

Place:

Chappell Room
For any further information please contact:
Alec Dubberley
Service Manager Democratic Services
0115 901 3906

Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3906 if you need it in large print, audio
or another format.

Cabinet
Membership
Chair

Councillor John Clarke

Vice-Chair

Councillor Michael Payne
Councillor Peter Barnes
Councillor David Ellis
Councillor Gary Gregory
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth
Councillor Henry Wheeler

Observers:

Councillor Chris Barnfather

Page

AGENDA
1

Apologies for Absence.

2

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meetings held on
28 June and 10 July 2018.

3

Declaration of Interests.

4

Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 2018/19 and Quarterly Treasury
Activity Report for Quarter ended 30 June 2018

5 - 14

15 - 32

Report of the Service Manager Financial Services.
5

Quarterly Budget Monitoring, Performance Digest & Virement Report

33 - 70

Report of the Senior Leadership Team.
6

Community Infrastructure Levy Annual Report

71 - 84

Report of the Acting Chief Executive.
7

Updates to the Complaints, Compliments and Comments Policy

85 - 88

Report of the Service Manager Customer Services and Communications.
8

Advertising and Sponsorship Policy

89 - 102

Report of the Sales and Marketing Manager.
9

Gedling Conversation 2018
Report of the Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services.

10

Progress Reports from Portfolio Holders.

11

Member's Questions to Portfolio Holders.

12

Any other items the Chair considers urgent.

103 - 108

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

MINUTES
CABINET
Thursday 28 June 2018
Councillor John Clarke (Chair)
Councillor Peter Barnes
Councillor Gary Gregory

Councillor Henry Wheeler

Observers:

Councillor Kevin Doyle

Absent:

Councillor Michael Payne, Councillor Jenny
Hollingsworth and Councillor Chris Barnfather

Officers in Attendance:

J Robinson, M Cryer, J Gray, M Hill, D Wakelin and
F Whyley

7

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hollingsworth,
Payne, and Barnfather (observor).
Councillor Doyle attended as substitute observor.

8

TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE
MEETING HELD ON 24 MAY 2018
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be
approved as a correct record.

9

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
None

10

MODERN SLAVERY
The Chief Executive introduced a report, which had been circulated prior
to the meeting, setting out the Council’s Modern Slavery and Human
Trafficking policies and Transparency statements.
RESOLVED:
To approve the Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy Statement
and Transparency Statement attached to the report.

Page 5

11

DATA PROTECTION POLICY AND APPROPRIATE POLICY
DOCUMENT AS REQUIRED BY THE DATA PROTECTION ACT
2018
Craig Allcock, Legal Advisor introduced a report seeking approval to
amend the Data Protection Policy in response to recent legislative
changes.
RESOLVED:
To approve the amendments to the Data Protection Policy at Appendix 1
to the report including the Annex to the Data Protection Policy, the
Appropriate Policy Document at Appendix 2 to the report.

12

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION INSURANCE MUTUAL
The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance introduced a report,
which had been circulated prior to the meeting, seeking approval to
apply to be a founding member of the new Local Government Insurance
Mutual.
RESOLVED to:
1) Approve the Council’s participation as a Founding Member of the
“Local Government Mutual”, which is a new company limited by
guarantee, from which to develop an insurance Mutual;
2) Nominate the Deputy Leader to be appointed as a Founding
Member committee member of the “Local Government Mutual” to
oversee and make strategic decisions in respect of its initial
phase of activity pending trading;
3) Delegate authority to the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of
Finance to submit the Application for Membership of the “Local
Government Mutual” as a Founding Member;
4) Authorise the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance to
share the Council’s relevant risk transfer and protection data with
the LGA officers working on the project on a strictly confidential
basis; and
5) Note that once the new Mutual is established, a report on options
and recommendations for the Council to utilise the Mutual will be
presented to Cabinet at the appropriate time.

13

PAPPLEWICK CONSERVATION
MANAGEMENT PLAN ADOPTION

Page 6

AREA

APPRAISAL

AND

The Service Manager Planning Policy introduced a report, which had
been circulated prior to the meeting, seeking approval to publish the
Papplewick Conservation Area Character Appraisal and the associated
Management Plan.
RESOLVED to:
1) Approve the appended Papplewick Conservation Area Character
Appraisal and Management Plan at Appendix B and the
recommended boundary changes therein (also attached at
Appendix C to the report);
2) Authorise the Service Manager - Planning Policy to notify the
Secretary of State of the boundary changes, and advertise the
boundary changes as required by statute; and
3) Delegate authority to the Service Manager - Planning Policy to
make any minor typographical, formatting or factual amendments
to the Papplewick Conservation Area Appraisal and Management
Plan as appropriate.
14

HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY AND PLANNING AND
HEALTH PROTOCOL
The Service Manager Planning Policy introduced a report which had
been circulated prior to the meeting, updating Cabinet on progress
towards implementing a Health and Wellbeing Strategy in light of the
emerging local plan.
RESOLVED

to:

1) Apply the Health and Wellbeing checklist to local planning policy
preparation only;
2) Endorse the health and well-being Protocol subject to referring
only those planning applications as defined in the table below
paragraph 12 to the relevant health partner; and
3) Request that the Service Manager Planning Policy communicates
this decision to Nottinghamshire County Council.
15

GEDLING GAMBLING STATEMENT OF POLICY
The Director of Heath and Community Wellbeing introduced a report,
which had been circulated prior to the meeting, informing Members of
the need to review the Statement of Gambling Policy and the required
period of consultation.
RESOLVED:

Page 7

To approve the proposed changes to the Council’s Gambling Statement
of Policy to go out to consultation for a period of ten weeks in
accordance with the Gambling Act and as detailed in this report.
16

PET CREMATION SERVICE
The Service Manager Parks and Street Care introduced a report, which
had been circulated prior to the meeting, seeking approval to introduce a
Pet Cremation Service.
RESOLVED:
1) To agree to increase the capital budget by £23,600 and refer to
Council for approval;
2) That subject to the approval of the capital budget, approve the
establishment of a new Pet Cremation Service within PASC which
will become fully operational by 1 April 2019;
3) To authorise the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance
to obtain any necessary consents, approvals and licences
required to operate the Pet Cremation Service; and
4) To authorise the Portfolio Holder for Environment to determine
any future proposals for the Pet Cremation service to be provided
to residents and businesses outside the Borough.

17

COLLABORATION
COUNCIL

AGREEMENT

WITH

NOTTINGHAM

CITY

The Chief Executive introduced a report which had been circulated prior
to the meeting, seeking approval to enter into an agreement to develop
Collaborative working with Nottingham City Council.
RESOLVED to:
1) Agree to enter into a Collaborative Agreement with Nottingham
City Council as detailed in the report; and
2) Authorise the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance, in
consultation with the Director of Democratic Services and
Organisational Development, to finalise the terms of the
Agreement. This being subject to reciprocal arrangements being
approved by the Nottingham City Council Executive.
18

FUTURE OPERATING MODEL FOR LEISURE SERVICES IN
GEDLING BOROUGH
The Director of Health and Community Wellbeing introduced a report,
which had been circulated prior to the meeting, updating Cabinet on the

Page 8

work being done to identify future operating models for the delivery of
leisure services.
RESOLVED to:
1) Support the continuation of the current arrangements with
Nottingham City Council;
2) Endorse the work carried out by officers to commission the
options appraisal work as described in the report; and
3) Request a further report to Cabinet later in the year that outlines
options and recommendations for the future operating model
most appropriate for the council’s leisure service.
19

FORWARD PLAN
Consideration was given to a report of the Service Manager, Elections
and Members’ Services, which had been circulated prior to the meeting,
detailing the Executive’s draft Forward Plan for the next four month
period.
Members were reminded of the additional meeting of Cabinet scheduled
for 10 July 2018.
RESOLVED:
To note the report.

20

PROGRESS REPORTS FROM PORTFOLIO HOLDERS.
Due to the longer than usual agenda, Councillor Clarke informed
members that this item was not being taken at this meeting.

21

MEMBER'S QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS.
Due to the longer than usual agenda, Councillor Clarke informed
members that this item was not being taken at this meeting.

22

ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.
None.

23

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
Councillor Clarke introduced a report relating to the Regeneration of
Land at Burton Road. He explained that there was information in the
report that was commercially sensitive. He therefore moved that the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration of the
item.

Page 9

RESOLVED:
That Members being satisfied that the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information that
under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the
ensuing report on the grounds that the report involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
24

REGENERATION OF LAND
AFFORDABLE HOUSING.

AT

BURTON

ROAD

FOR

The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance introduced a not for
publication report, which had been circulated prior to the meeting,
seeking approval to take the necessary steps to acquire land on Burton
Road for affordable housing.
RESOLVED to:
1) Approve the acquisition of the Site under the Council’s powers
under s.120 of the Local Government Act 1972, up to the
maximum cost detailed in the report;
2) Authorise the use of s.106 affordable housing funds to meet the
capital costs of the scheme including acquisition, demolition and
legal costs up to the maximum cost detailed in the report;
3) Delegate authority to the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of
Finance to agree Heads of Terms for the acquisition of the Site
(as shown on the plan at appendix 1 to the report), to make
formal offers for no more than the total detailed in the report
subject to the offers being accepted, to complete the acquisition
of the Site;
4) Authorise the Service Manager for Property to obtain any
necessary approvals and consents to enable demolition of the
buildings on the Site once acquired;
5) Authorise the Service Manager for Economic Growth and
Regeneration to invite tenders for an affordable housing scheme
on the Site; and
6) Note that acceptance of tenders and decisions on the disposal of
land will be the subject to a separate Portfolio Holder report.
25

THANKS TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Page 10

Councillor Clarke, on behalf of all Members, paid tribute to John
Robinson, Chief Executive who was attending Cabinet for the final time.
The Leader thanked John for his 10 years of service to Gedling noting in
particular the excellent work he led to resettle Syrian refugees in
Nottinghamshire. He said that his compassion and good humour would
be missed and wished him all the best for his new role at Newark and
Sherwood District Council.

The meeting finished at 2.15 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

MINUTES
CABINET
Tuesday 10 July 2018
Councillor John Clarke (Chair)
Councillor Peter Barnes
Councillor David Ellis
Councillor Gary Gregory

Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth
Councillor Henry Wheeler

Observers:

Councillor Chris Barnfather

Absent:

Councillor Michael Payne

Officers in Attendance:

H Barrington,
D Wakelin

26

A Gibson,

C Goodall,

M Hill

and

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Payne.

27

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
The Chair declared a non-pecuniary interest in the Local Planning
Document on behalf of all Members present as a number of sites
contained within the document were in the ownership of the Borough
Council.

28

ADOPTION OF LOCAL PLANNING DOCUMENT
The Service Manager Planning Policy introduced a report which had
been circulated prior to the meeting, presenting the Gedling Borough
Council Local Planning Document for adoption.
The Chair thanked officers in the Planning Policy team for their efforts
and also thanked opposition members, particularly Councillors
Barnfather and Bexon, for their input and professionalism.
RESOLVED to:
1) Recommend to Council that the Gedling Borough Local Planning
Document including the Policies Map as attached at Appendix C
and Appendix D to the report is adopted
2) Delegate authority to the Service Manager for Planning Policy, in
consultation with the Chair of Planning Committee, to make any

Page 13

minor changes (e.g. typing errors, formatting and images)
necessary prior to publication of the Local Planning document
and Policies Map (such changes will not alter the material content
of Appendices C and D);
3) Authorise the Service Manager for Planning Policy to publish the
adopted documents and an adoption statement in accordance
with Regulations 26 and 35 of the Town and Country Planning
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.
29

ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.
None.

The meeting finished at 1.10 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 14

Agenda Item 4

Report to Cabinet
Subject:

Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 2018/19 and Quarterly
Treasury Activity Report for Quarter ended 30 June 2018

Date:

2 August 2018

Author:

Service Manager Financial Services

Wards Affected
All
Purpose
To inform Members of the performance monitoring of the 2018/19
Prudential Code Indicators, and to advise Members of the quarterly treasury
activity as required by the Treasury Management Strategy.
Key Decision
This is not a key decision.
Background
1.1

The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act
2003 to report on its Prudential Code indicators and treasury activity. This
report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in
Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

1.2

For 2018/19 the minimum reporting requirements are that the Full Council
should receive the following reports:




An annual Treasury Strategy in advance of the year (the TMSS, considered
by Cabinet on 15 February 2018 and subsequently approved by Full
Council on 5 March 2018);
A mid-year treasury update report;
An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity
compared to the Strategy.

Page 15

In accordance with best practice, quarterly monitoring reports for treasury
activity are provided to Members, and this exceeds the minimum requirements.
1.3 The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report provides
details of the position at 30 June 2018 and highlights compliance with the
Council’s policies.
Proposal
2.1 Economic update
UK - growth in 2017 was weak in the first half of the year but picked up to
0.5% in Q3, and to 0.4% in Q4. Growth in Q1 of 2018 was again
disappointing, although at 0.2% fears were allayed that the economy may
have started a prolonged period of very weak growth. Indications in Q2 are
that growth has picked up to around 0.4%. The main reason for weak
growth during 2017 and 2018 has been inflation exceeding pay growth until
recently, meaning that there has been negative growth in consumer
disposable income when consumer expenditure is the biggest driver of the
services sector - which accounts for about 75% of GDP.
The manufacturing sector did relatively well in 2017, but Q1 of 2018 was the
weakest quarter for one and a half years, and forward indicators do not
suggest that a return to strong growth is likely.
During January and February, financial markets were viewing a Bank Rate
increase at the May Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting as a near
certainty after strong growth in the second half of 2017. However, the
weeks before the meeting saw opinion turn, and the MPC left rates
unchanged due to concerns as to whether the weak growth in Q1 was
indicative of the start of a prolonged slow down, or just a temporary blip, to
which bad weather had been one contributor. Since May, opinion has again
turned to suggest that an August Bank Rate increase is likely. However,
there remains much uncertainty around the Brexit negotiations, consumer
spending levels and business investment, so it is too early to be confident
about how strong growth and inflationary pressures will develop over the
next two years, and therefore the pace of any rate increases.
EU - a recovery to strong growth in 2016 and 2017 looks likely to weaken
going forward. Despite providing massive monetary stimulus, the European
Central Bank (ECB) has been struggling to raise inflation to its 2% target.
In April, the headline Eurozone rate jumped up from 1.4% to 1.9% although
core inflation remained subdued, rising from 0.7% to 1.1%. At its June
meeting, the ECB announced that it would halve its monthly quantitative
easing purchases from €30bn to €15bn, and then end all purchases after
December. It is unlikely to start increasing interest rates until late in 2019.

Page 16

USA - growth in the American economy was volatile in 2015, 2016 and
2017. The annual rate of GDP growth for 2017 was 2.3% and Q1 of 2018
was 2.0%, down from 2.9% in the previous quarter. President Trump’s $1.5
trillion income tax cut package came into effect in January 2018 and is likely
to boost growth towards the administration’s 3% target. However, it is also
likely to boost inflation at a time when spare capacity in the economy is
minimal and unemployment has fallen to the lowest level for 17 years,
reaching 3.8% in May. The Federal Reserve (the Fed) has started
increasing rates, with seven increases since December 2015, the latest in
June 2018 to lift the central rate to 2.00%. There could be two further
increases during 2018.
In October 2017, the Fed became the first major western central bank to
start unwinding its quantitative easing by phasing in a gradual reduction in
respect of reinvesting maturing debt.
China - economic growth has been weakening over successive years,
despite repeated rounds of central bank stimulus, and medium term risks
are increasing. Major progress is still needed to eliminate excess industrial
capacity and the stock of unsold property, and to address the level of nonperforming loans in the banking and credit systems.
Japan - the best economic run of positive growth since the 1980s came to
an end in Q1 of 2018, with a contraction of -0.6% blamed on weak exports.
However, Japan is still struggling to get inflation up to its target rate of 2%,
despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus, with inflation falling to only 0.4%
in May. It is also making little progress on fundamental reform of the
economy.
2.2 Interest rate forecast
The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services undertook its last
review of interest rate forecasts on 11 May after the quarterly Bank of
England Inflation Report, and MPC meeting at which Bank Rate was
unchanged at 0.5%. The minutes of this meeting indicated that they wanted
to see whether the slowdown in growth in Q1 had been a temporary blip, or
a potential first sign of a prolonged period of weak growth.
The overall balance of risk to economic recovery in the UK is probably
even, however given the uncertainties around Brexit there is a wide
diversity of possible outcomes for the strength of economic growth and
inflation, and correspondingly to the rate of increase in Bank Rate.
Link Asset Services (LAS) have provided the following forecast:

Page 17

Bank Rate
5yr PWLB Rate
10yr PWLB View
25yr PWLB View
50yr PWLB Rate

Sep-18 Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20
0.50% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
2.00% 2.00% 2.10% 2.20% 2.20% 2.30% 2.30%
2.40% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.80%
2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30%
2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00%

Jun-20
1.25%
2.40%
2.90%
3.40%
3.10%

Sep-20
1.25%
2.40%
2.90%
3.40%
3.10%

Dec-20
1.50%
2.50%
3.00%
3.50%
3.20%

Mar-21
1.50%
2.50%
3.00%
3.50%
3.20%

2.3 Investment strategy
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2018/19, which
includes the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by Council on 5
March 2018, and sets out the Council’s investment priorities as:




security of capital;
liquidity;
yield

Whilst the Council will always seek to obtain the optimum return (yield) on
its investments, this will at all times be commensurate with proper levels of
security and liquidity. In the current economic climate it is considered
appropriate either to keep investments short term to cover cash flow needs,
or to extend the period up to 12 months with highly rated financial
institutions, selected by the use of the LAS creditworthiness methodology
(see below) which includes consideration of sovereign ratings.
Investment counterparty limits for 2018/19 are generally £3m per individual
counterparty, however a higher limit of £4m per Money Market Fund is
considered prudent since such funds are already by definition highly
diversified investment vehicles. The Chief Financial Officer has delegated
authority to vary these limits as appropriate, and to report any change to
Cabinet as part of the next quarterly report. The limits have not been
exceeded during the period 1 April to 30 June 2018.
During the period from 1 April to 30 June 2018, significant use has been
made of the Council’s two Money Market Funds (MMFs). These are AAA
rated investment vehicles which allow the pooling of many billions of
pounds into highly diversified funds, thus reducing risk. The current rate of
return on these funds is around 0.50%, and this is generally higher than
overnight treasury deposit rates and of the rate obtainable from the Debt
Management Office (DMO).
An investment of £1m was made in the CCLA Local Authority Property
Fund (LAPF) on 1 December 2017. The LAPF is a local government
investment scheme approved by the Treasury under the Trustee
Investments Act 1961 (section 11). Dividends are currently averaging
around 4% per annum and are treated as revenue income. This investment

Page 18

has allowed the Council to introduce a property element into its investment
portfolio without the risks associated with the direct purchase of assets. The
main risk around Property Funds is the preservation of the capital sum,
however evidence from recent years shows that over time the property
market has been a positive long-term investment. It is accordingly
anticipated that this investment will be held for at least five years to
minimise any risk.
The property fund investment purchased a number of units, determined by
the unit price on the entry date. This valued the initial investment of £1m at
£936k, setting the entry fee at £64k, or 6.4%. As indicated above, the
property fund investment is for the long-term, and it is expected that this will
be recovered as the fund grows, and by 31 March 2018 the value had risen
to £956k representing an in year gain of £20k. A contribution of £64,000
was made to a reserve in 2017/18 and this will be used to mitigate the
impact of variations on the General Fund if necessary, in the light of
accounting changes due to take place in 2018/19.
The Treasury Activity Report for the quarter ended 30 June 2018 is
attached at Appendix 1, in accordance with the Treasury Management
Strategy. For reference, definitions of LIBOR and LIBID are given at
Appendix 2.
Members will note that investment interest of £25,922 was generated from
MMF activity, term deposits with banks and building societies, and the
property fund during the period from 1 April to 30 June 2018. This
represents an overall equated rate for the Council of 0.89% and
outperforms the benchmark 7 day LIBID rate, which averaged 0.21% for the
same period. In cash terms this represents additional income to the General
Fund of around £19,800 and was achieved by positive investment
management and a favourable return on the property fund. Performance in
respect of the longer 3 month LIBID rate, which averaged 0.29%, still
represents additional income of £17,500.
Rates in the market remain low, and this is likely to continue following the
UK’s vote to leave the EU. As loans mature every effort is made to replace
them at favourable rates, however security and liquidity will always be the
overriding factors in the Council’s treasury management. LAS currently
forecast that Bank Rate might rise in November 2018, however there is
much uncertainty and interest rates are expected to rise only gradually, and
not significantly.
It is currently anticipated that the outturn for investment interest will be
£86,000, an increase of £13,000 on the current approved estimate of
£73,000 for 2018/19. The impact of this increase is included in the Q1
revenue budget monitoring report elsewhere on this agenda.

Page 19

Credit ratings advice is taken from LAS and the Chief Financial Officer has
adopted the LAS credit rating methodology for the selection of investment
counterparties. This employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising
credit ratings from all three of the main rating agencies to give a suggested
maximum duration for investments. Accordingly it does not place undue
reliance on any one agency’s ratings.
The methodology subsequently applies an “overlay” to take account of
positive and negative credit watches and/or credit outlook information,
which may increase or decrease the suggested duration of investments. It
then applies a second overlay based on the credit default swap spreads for
institutions, the monitoring of which has been shown to give an early
warning of likely changes in credit ratings. It also incorporates sovereign
ratings to ensure selection of counterparties from only the most creditworthy
countries. The current Treasury Strategy permits the use of any UK
counterparties subject to their individual credit ratings under the LAS
methodology. It also permits the use of counterparties from other countries
with a minimum sovereign rating of AA. For information, the UK currently
has a rating of AA.
The LAS modelling approach combines all the various factors in a weighted
scoring system and results in a series of colour coded bands which indicate
the creditworthiness of counterparties. The colour bandings are as follows:








Yellow
Purple
Blue
Orange
Red
Green
No colour

5 years (UK Government debt or its equivalent)
2 years
1 year (nationalised or semi nationalised UK banks only)
1 year
6 months
100 days
not to be used

Credit ratings are monitored weekly and the Council is also alerted to
interim changes by its use of the LAS creditworthiness service, however
ratings under the methodology, including sovereign ratings, will not
necessarily be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution. Other
information sources used will include the financial press, share price and
other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish
the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment
counterparties.
The ultimate decision on what is prudent and manageable for the
Council will be taken by the Chief Financial Officer under the approved
scheme of delegation.

Page 20

2.4 New borrowing
No new long-term borrowing was undertaken during the quarter ended 30
June 2018.
The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents its
underlying need to borrow to finance capital investment. Due to favourable
interest rates, borrowing in advance of need is sometimes desirable, with
the result that the CFR can differ to the actual borrowing planned in the
year. Updated investment guidance issued in February 2018 confirms that
borrowing in advance of need purely to profit from the investment of the
extra sums borrowed, rather than prudent early borrowing for a service
objective, is however unlawful.
£1m of planned borrowing in 2017/18 did not take place, and It is currently
anticipated that this £1m, plus the estimated £2.5m for 2018/19 will be
undertaken during the year, at a point when interest rates are deemed most
favourable by the Chief Financial Officer in conjunction with LAS. Interest
rates remain low and the PWLB certainty rate, available to all authorities
providing relevant information to CLG, allows the Council to take advantage
of a discount of 20 basis points.
It is currently anticipated that the outturn for PWLB interest payable will be
broadly in line with the currently approved budget for 2018/19.
The Council has embarked upon a commercialisation programme aimed at
the generation of funding to replace central government support, which is
scheduled to be withdrawn by 2020. Significant additional borrowing may be
required to support this commercial programme, and this will be supported
by individual business case assessments and appropriate budget
approvals, to demonstrate that each project generates a return sufficient to
cover any borrowing costs. Advice will be taken from LAS with regard to the
amount and timing of any additional borrowing, and should conditions
become advantageous, some borrowing in advance of need will also be
considered by the Chief Financial Officer.
Whilst borrowing rates remain historically low, investment rates are also
low, and serious consideration must be given to the cost of carrying any
additional borrowing during the period prior to it being required for the
financing of capital expenditure.
2.5 Debt rescheduling
Debt rescheduling opportunities are limited in the current economic climate,
and due to the structure of interest rates. Advice in this regard will continue
to be taken from LAS. No debt rescheduling has been undertaken during

Page 21

the period from 1 April to 30 June 2018.
2.6 Compliance with Prudential and treasury indicators
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the
affordable borrowing limit. The Council’s approved Prudential and Treasury
Indicators (affordability limits) are included in the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement (TMSS) approved by Full Council on 5 March 2018.
During the financial year to date the Council has at all times operated within
the treasury limits and Prudential Indicators set out in the Council’s TMSS,
and in compliance with the Council's Treasury Management Practices. The
Prudential and Treasury Indicators as at 30 June 2018 are shown at
Appendix 3.
a) Prudential Indicators:
These indicators are based on estimates of expected outcomes, and are
key indicators of “affordability”. They are monitored on a quarterly basis,
and Appendix 3 compares the approved indicators with the projected
outturn for 2018/19, and shows variances on some of the indicators, as
described below:
i) Capital Expenditure
The latest projected outturn shows that capital expenditure is expected to
be £10,173,700. This differs to the original estimate of £8,374,000 due to
the inclusion of approved carry-forward requests from 2017/18 and to
proposed variations to the capital programme during 2018/19.
ii) Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
The projected closing CFR for 2018/19 is £14,986,700. This is lower than
the approved indicator of £15,086,500, due to savings on the 2017/18
capital programme and slippage of schemes to 2018/19, both of which
reduced the borrowing requirement in that year.
iii) Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
The projected outturn of 7.50% shows a minor increase on the approved
indicator of 7.49%. This is due to increased revenue contributions to
capital expenditure, offset by reductions in MRP arising from the savings
and slippage on the capital programme in 2017/18, and additional
investment interest.

Page 22

iv) Maximum gross debt
The Council must ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short
term, exceed the opening capital financing requirement, plus estimates of
any additional CFR for 2018/19 and the following two financial years. This
allows flexibility for early borrowing for future years, but ensures that
borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes. The Council’s gross
debt at 30 June 2018 was £6.812m which was well within the approved
indicator.
b) Treasury Management Indicators:
These indicators are based on limits, beyond which activities should not
pass without management action. They include two key indicators of
affordability and four key indicators of prudence.
Affordability:
i) Operational boundary for external debt
This is the limit which external debt is not “normally” expected to exceed. In
most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but it may be lower or
higher depending on the levels of actual debt.
ii) Authorised limit for external debt
This limit represents a control on the “maximum” level of borrowing. It is
the statutory limit determined under s3 (1) of the Local Government Act
2003 and represents the limit beyond which external debt is prohibited.
The Authorised Limit must be set, and revised if necessary, by Full
Council. It reflects a level of external debt which, while not desirable,
could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer
term. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all
councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this power has not
yet been exercised
Prudence:
iii) Interest rate exposure
Prior to the December 2017 revisions to the Treasury Management Code
there was a requirement to set indicators for the Council’s maximum exposure
to fixed and variable interest rates for net borrowing (ie. external borrowing
less investments). This requirement has now been removed in favour of a
statement in the TMSS stating how interest rate exposure is managed and
monitored, and this is given below:

Page 23

The Council has a general preference for fixed rate borrowing in order to
minimse uncertainty and ensure stability in the charge to revenue, however it
is acknowledged that in certain circumstances, some variable rate borrowing
may be prudent, for example if interest rates are expected to fall. The
Council’s investments are generally for cashflow purposes and accordingly a
mix of fixed and variable rates will be used to maximise flexibility and liquidity.
Interest rate exposure will be managed and monitored on a daily basis by the
Chief Financial Officer.
Local indicators, simply for the proportions of fixed and variable rate loans,
have been retained by the Council for information purposes.
iv) Maximum new principal sums to be invested during 2018/19 for periods in
excess of one year (365 days) such investments are classified as a “nonspecified”. This indicator is subject to the overall limit for non-specified
investments set in the TMSS.
v) Upper limits for the maturity structure of borrowing - set to reduce the
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing.
Appendix 3 shows the actual position as at 30 June 2018, and
demonstrates that all activities are contained within the currently approved
limits.
2.7

Other Issues
i) Revised Cipfa Codes of Practice
Revised editions of the Prudential Code and the Treasury Management
Code and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes were published in December
2017, with changes effective from 2018/19. These focus particularly on
how to deal with local authority investments which are not “treasury
investments”, eg. property purchases, in order to generate income for the
authority at a higher level than can be attained by treasury investments.
The revised Prudential Code includes an explicit requirement for the
preparation of a Capital Strategy, setting out the long term context in
which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made. The
strategy must consider both risks and rewards, as well as any impact on
the achievement of the Council’s priority outcomes. The Council already
produces a Capital Programme and Capital Investment Strategy and this
is being reviewed to ensure that any additional requirements of the revised
Code are incorporated.
The revised Codes acknowledge the drive for income generation and the

Page 24

use of non-treasury related investment instruments, such as investment
property, but they reiterate the need for risk management - including
proportionality in respect of overall resources.
ii) Revised Investment and MRP Guidance
The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
issued revised Investment Guidance and Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP) Guidance in February 2018, again for implementation in 2018/19.
The definition of “investment” has been changed to include expenditure
driven activity, eg. commercial property, as well as simple treasury cash.
Such activity would represent “non-treasury investments”, ie investments
in “non-financial assets”.
The effective definition in the 2010 guidance of short term investment
being that repayable “within 12 months” has been removed from the 2018
guidance. A long term investment now is therefore one in excess of 365
days (previously 364 days).
The revised MRP guidance also focuses on expenditure on non-financial
investments, eg. property, making it clear that the duty to make MRP
extends to investment property where its acquisition has been partially or
fully funded by an increase in borrowing. The guidance also confirms that
borrowing may only be undertaken for strategic purposes and not purely
for financial return.
Alternative Options
There are no alternative options in that this report is a requirement of the
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS).
Financial Implications
No specific financial implications are attributable to this report.
Appendices
1. Treasury Activity Report 2018/19 for Quarter 1 (30 June 2018)
2. Definitions of LIBOR and LIBID
3. Prudential and Treasury Indicator Monitoring 2018/19 for Quarter 1
(30 June 2018).

Page 25

Background Papers
None identified.
Recommendation
That:
1. Members note the report, together with the Treasury Activity Report
2018/19 for Quarter 1, at Appendix 1, and the Prudential and Treasury
Indicator Monitoring 2018/19 for Quarter 1, at Appendix 3.

Reasons for Recommendation
To comply with the requirements of the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy Statement.
For more information, please contact:
Alison Ball, Financial Services Manager, on 0115 901 3980

Page 26

Appendix 1

TREASURY ACTIVITY REPORT 2018/19
For Quarter ended 30 June 2018
Position @
1 April 2018
£

Loans Made Loans Repaid
During Q1
During Q1
£
£

Position @
30 June 2018
£

Long Term Borrowing
PWLB

6,811,577

0

0

6,811,577

6,811,577

0

0

6,811,577

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

6,811,577

0

0

6,811,577

(1,000,000)

0

0

(1,000,000)

(1,000,000)

0

0

(1,000,000)

0
0
0
(3,000,000)
0
(1,290,000)
0
(3,000,000)

(3,000,000)
0
(11,930,000)
0
(8,650,000)
(7,790,000)
0
(3,220,000)

0
0
7,930,000
0
8,310,000
6,660,000
0
3,220,000

(3,000,000)
0
(4,000,000)
(3,000,000)
(340,000)
(2,420,000)
0
(3,000,000)

(7,290,000)

(34,590,000)

26,120,000

(15,760,000)

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

Total Temporary Investment

(7,290,000)

(34,590,000)

26,120,000

(15,760,000)

TOTAL INVESTMENT (See below)

(8,290,000)

(34,590,000)

26,120,000

(16,760,000)

NET BORROWING /
(INVESTMENT)

(1,478,423)

(34,590,000)

26,120,000

(9,948,423)

Total Long Term Borrowing
Temporary Borrowing
Local Authorities
Public Corporations
Central Government
Banks & Other Institutions
Total Temporary Borrowing
TOTAL BORROWING
Long Term Investment
CCLA LAPF Property Fund
Total Long Term Investment
Temporary Investment
Bank of Scotland
Barclays
Blackrock Money Market Fund
Goldman Sachs
HSBC Treasury
Ignis Money Market Fund (Std Life)
Royal Bank of Scotland
Santander
Total Banks
Building Societies
Debt Management Office
Local Authorities & Other

Temporary Borrowing & Investment Statistics at 30 June 2018
Investment:
Fixed Rate Investment
Variable Rate Investment

(4,000,000)
(4,290,000)

(13,650,000)
(20,940,000)

8,310,000
17,810,000

(9,340,000)
(7,420,000)

TOTAL INVESTMENT

(8,290,000)

(34,590,000)

26,120,000

(16,760,000)

Proportion of Fixed Rate Investment
Proportion of Variable Rate Investment
Temporary Investment Interest Receivable
Equated Temporary Investment
Weighted Average Interest Rate Received (Interest Receivable / Equated Investment)
7 Day LIBID (Benchmark)
3 Month LIBID

£
£

55.73%
44.27%
25,922
2,896,837
0.89%
0.21%
0.29%

Borrowing:
Temporary Borrowing Interest Payable
Equated Temporary Borrowing
Weighted Average Interest Rate Paid (Interest Payable / Equated Borrowing)
7 Day LIBOR (Benchmark)

Page 27

£
£

n/a
0.49%

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2

LIBOR - the London Interbank Offered Rate
LIBOR is the interest rate at which the London banks are willing to offer funds in the
inter-bank market. It is the average of rates which five major London banks are willing
to lend £10 million for a period of three or six months, and is the benchmark rate for
setting interest rates for adjustable-rate loans and financial instruments.
ie. the London banks are LENDING to each other, which affects the rate at which the
banks will lend to other parties eg. local authorities, ie. Gedling are BORROWING
money

LIBID - the Interbank BID (LIBID) rate
LIBID is the interest rate at which London banks are willing to borrow from one another
in the inter-bank market. It is the average of rates which five major London banks
willing to bid for a £10 million deposit for a period of three or six months.
ie. the London banks are BORROWING from each other, which affects the rates at
which they will borrow from other parties eg. local authorities, ie. Gedling are LENDING
money.

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Prudential Indicators for 2018/19
1 April to 30 June 2018

Appendix 3
2018/19
Original
Estimate
(Council 5/3/18)

1. Prudential Indicators

2018/19
Position at
30-Jun-18

Affordability:
a)
b)
c)
e)

Capital Expenditure
Capital Financing Requirement
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
Maximum Gross Debt

£
£
£

8,374,000 £
15,086,500 £
7.49%
16,849,000 £

10,173,700
14,986,700
7.50%
6,811,577

a) Operational Boundary for External Debt:
Borrowing
Other Long Term Liabilities
Total Operational Boundary

£
£
£

17,800,000 £
1,500,000 £
19,300,000 £

6,811,577
6,811,577

b) Authorised Limit for External Debt:
Borrowing
Other Long Term Liabilities
Total Authorised Limit

£
£
£

18,800,000 £
1,500,000 £
20,300,000 £

6,811,577
6,811,577

2. Treasury Management Indicators

c) Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure:
(Maximum outstanding net BORROWING)
Local Indicator - Investment Only
Local Indicator - Borrowing Only

100.00%
100.00%

55.73%
100.00%

d) Upper limit for variable interest rate exposure:
(Maximum outstanding net BORROWING)
Local Indicator - Investment Only
Local Indicator - Borrowing Only

100.00%
50.00%

44.27%
0.00%

e) Upper & Lower limits for the maturity structure
of outstanding Borrowing during 2018/19:
Under 1 Year
1 Year to 2 Years
2 Years to 5 Years
5 Years to 10 Years
Over 10 Years

U 40%, L 0%
U 40%, L 0%
U 50%, L 0%
U 50%, L 0%
U 100%, L 0%

0%
0%
0%
0%
100%

f) Investment Treasury Indicator and limit:
Max. NEW principal sums invested in-year for periods
OVER 364 days (ie. non-specified), subject to maximum
non specified per counterparty of £3m AND to the prevailing
overall counterparty limit AND to the the TOTAL non
specified limit of £5m.
£

Page 31

3,000,000 £

-

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Report to Cabinet
Subject:

Quarterly Budget Monitoring, Performance Digest & Virement Report

Date:

2 August 2018

Author:

Senior Leadership Team

Wards Affected
Borough-wide
Purpose


To update Cabinet on the likely outturn of the Revenue and Capital Budgets for
the 2018/19 financial year. The budgets include all carried forward amounts
from the 2017/18 financial year.



To request Cabinet approval for the budget changes outlined in this report.



To inform Cabinet of the position against Improvement Actions and
Performance Indicators in the 2018/19 Gedling Plan.

Key Decision
This is a Key Decision.
Background
1.1

The Council has made a commitment to closely align budget and performance
management. This is in line with accepted good practice.

1.2

To deliver this commitment, systems to monitor performance against revenue
and capital budgets, improvement activity and performance indicators have all
been brought together and are now embedded in the way the Council works.

1.3

In addition, performance reports now focus more directly on the Council’s
priorities and offer an “early warning” system of instances where targets may
not be secured.

1.4

As usual, comprehensive details about current performance against the
Gedling Plan can be accessed through the following link on the Council's
website:-

Page 33

http://www.gedling.gov.uk/council/aboutus/prioritiesplansandperformance/how
weredoing/
Members are recommended to view this document which provides valuable
background detail to this summary paper. It provides a more in-depth review
of indicators, actions and outcomes for quarter 1.
1.5

A full set of papers that appear on the website have been printed and these
reports are available in the Members’ Room. They contain explanations of
variances from expected performance together with trend arrows for all the
performance indicators within the Gedling Plan (note that an upward arrow
indicates improved performance, irrespective of whether improvement is
represented by a higher or lower value) and progress bars for all Gedling Plan
actions showing progress made against project milestones.

1.6

The assessment criteria used for actions and indicators is based on red,
amber and green traffic light symbols. To be assessed as green performance
indicators must be in line with their expected performance at this stage of the
year, whilst actions must be on target against the “completed” or “in progress”
milestones determined within the performance management system,
Pentenna.

Proposal
2

Quarterly Progress Report

2.1

Performance Information
Current Performance

Background
1.4

As usual, comprehensive details about current performance against the
Gedling Plan can be accessed through the following link on the Council's
website:http://www.gedling.gov.uk/aboutus/howwework/prioritiesplansperformance/ho
wisgedlingdoing/
Members are recommended to view this document which provides valuable
background detail to this summary paper. It provides a more in-depth review
of indicators, actions and outcomes for quarter 1.

1.5

A full set of papers that appear on the website have been printed and these
reports are available in the Members’ Room. They contain explanations of
variances from expected performance together with trend arrows for all the
performance indicators within the Gedling Plan (note that an upward arrow
indicates improved performance, irrespective of whether improvement is

Page 34

represented by a higher or lower value) and progress bars for all Gedling Plan
actions showing progress made against project milestones.
1.6

The assessment criteria used for actions and indicators is based on red,
amber and green traffic light symbols. To be assessed as green performance
indicators must be in line with their expected performance at this stage of the
year, whilst actions must be on target against the “completed” or “in progress”
milestones determined within the performance management system,
Pentenna.

2

Quarterly Progress Report

2.1

Performance Information
Current Performance

2.1.1 Overall performance at quarter 1 against the 2018/19 Gedling Plan actions
and indicators shows the following:

Page 35

Actions
2.1.2 Seven of the 77 Gedling Plan actions are completed, with the remaining either
in progress or assigned to an Officer. It must be noted that the data in this
report refers to the first quarter of the financial year only and it is expected
that actions identified for the year will be met.
Indicators
2.1.3 Overall indicator performance at the end of quarter 1 shows that out of a total
of 34 indicators, 23 were on or above target, 2 were slightly below target and
6 indicators missed their target. One indicator is for tracking purposes only
and for two indicators the data was not available at the time of drafting this
report.
Examples of particularly positive performance during quarter 1 include:








A total of 272,400 people visited the leisure centres against a target of
237,500.
The average number of DNA members increase to 4308, exceeding the
target of 4200.
A total of 8,809 people have attended Bonington Theatre productions
against a target of 7,125.
Average time to process Housing Benefit change in circumstances (in
calendar days) was 3.3 days against target of 4 days.
Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit new claims
and change events (in calendar days) was 4.7 days against target of 6
days.
Almost 30% of business rates were collected against a target of 27.37%.
The number of working days lost due to sickness absence was 8.51 days,
below the 9 days target.

Page 36








Over 93% of calls to the contact centre were answered (or call back made)
against a target of 90%.
6 school age work experience placements were hosted.
15 long term empty homes in the Borough were returned to use as a result
of Gedling Borough Council intervention, against a target of 5.
49 affordable homes delivered against target of 33.
97.7% of minor planning applications were processed within 8 weeks
against a target of 91%.
97.1% of Other planning applications were processed within 8 weeks
against a target of 85%.

The following performance indicators missed their target at the end of quarter
1, however from an SLT perspective there are no specific performance
concerns to raise:










Level of All Crime across Gedling Borough rate per 1000 population was
14.7 against a target of 13.3. Recorded crimes across the borough for the
first quarter of 2018 / 19 total 1725 offences, which is an increase of 261
offences when compared to the same period the previous year, equal to
an increase of 17.8%. The South Nottinghamshire Community Partnership
is working hard to put plans in place to prevent crime and have been
working with Nottinghamshire Police colleagues to increase the numbers
of ‘response officers’ based in Gedling.
Level of recorded anti-social behaviour across Gedling Borough per 1000
population was 4.6 against a target of 3.9. Recorded anti-social
behaviour for quarter 1 2018 / 19 has shown an increase of 51 incidents
(542 incidents), compared to the same period the previous year, this
equates to an increase of 10.4%. The Community Safety Partnership
have put in place, with police colleagues, plans for additional youth worker
patrols to help divert young people from committing anti-social behaviour,
in addition a CCTV camera is being installed in Arnold close to a known
anti-social behaviour hot spot.
Average time taken to process Housing Benefit claims is 14 days, above
the 13 days target. Performance continues to be in the top 5% nationally
and performance against the other performance indicators relating to the
processing of benefit claims remains strong. Performance did temporary
dip in quarter one due to workload, however this should be addressed and
recovered by quarter two.
Average length of time spent in temporary is 14.1 weeks against a target
of 8 weeks, as this target is very much demand led and totally dependent
on Gedling Homes, Housing Associations and Private Sector properties
being available, of which there are very few. Medium to large families are
particularly hard to find properties for. Our Temporary accommodation is
under pressure, however, plans are in place to secure additional
temporary accommodation.
Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting
was 34% against a target of 39%. The basis of calculation for this
indicator is subject to clarification, however quarter 4 reflects the winter
period where garden waste collection yields are low. The Council is also
suffering from contamination in its recycling bins, and efforts are being

Page 37

made on a countywide basis to reinforce the message about
contaminates, and education materials are being produced locally.
106 additional homes were built during quarter 1, against a target of 120.
Whilst the target has not been met, Members should note that this figure was
the second highest since quarter 2 of 2014/15. It is anticipated that the
adoption of the Local Planning Document at Council on 18th July, will release
additional sites for development and increase the number of homes delivered
further.
Target change requests
2.1.4 Performance indicator targets are set at the end of quarter 3 for the following
year and are based on actual In light of the particularly positive performance
during quarter 1 which the Council expects to sustain throughout the year, the
following requests for changes to targets have been made:





Number of visits to Leisure Centres – request to change target from
950,000 to 1,020,000.
Number of attendance at the Bonington Theatre – request to change
target from 28,500 to 37,500. Actual outturn for 17/18 was 37,297
Number of theatre events/shows taking place at the Bonington Theatre
– request to change target from 585 to 690. Actual outturn for 17/18
was 687.
Number of cinema shows taking place at the Bonington Theatre –
change to target from 260 to 350. Actual outturn for 17/18 was 339.

Achievements
2.1.5 A separate report is produced highlighting key achievements delivered during
quarter 1, focusing on areas where the Council has made a real difference to
people’s lives. This is attached as Appendix 4 and is available on the
Council’s website and in hard copy in the Members’ Room. The following
outcomes are identified for particular attention.
Significant partnership working between Gedling Borough Council and
the Police and other agencies in response to knife crime issues in
Arnold - These measures included increased CCTV monitoring, work to
install additional CCTV cameras, targeted enforcement against known
individuals, additional patrolling by the Police and Neighbourhood wardens
and the commencement of a program of engagement with youths who are at
risk of being caught up in knife related crime.
Arnold Carnival - There were big crowds again at this year’s Carnival over
two days in June. The event offered a broad range of stage entertainment,
walkabout artists, young people’s activities and a fun fair. Gedling Play Forum
offered arts and crafts and inflatable fun, while a new outdoor market place
was available for local traders and charities.

Page 38

Adoption of the Papplewick Conservation Area Appraisal - A
Conservation Area Appraisal was approved for Papplewick Conservation Area
on 28th June 2018. The Appraisal identifies those qualities that contribute to
the area’s significance as a place of special architectural and historic interest
and provides a framework against which decisions about future development
can be made.
Gedling Borough Heritage Strategy - The Council has adopted a new
Heritage Strategy for the Borough. This will direct the work of the Council for
the next few years regarding work with and support for our local heritage
partners. Key actions include:
 The delivery of the Gedling Borough’s Heritage Brought Alive project
 Support for the Local Plan
 Upkeep of the Historic Buildings at Risk Register
 Development of a Gedling Borough Heritage Way footpath
 Explore plans for a new Heritage Centre at Gedling Country Park
 Consider how to support local heritage assets to have a long-term
sustainable future
 Develop long-term plans to work alongside local groups through the
Gedling Borough Heritage Forum
Carlton Forum fitness suite refurbishment - Carlton Forum Leisure
Centre’s fitness suite was refurbished and re-opened to customer on the 11th
April.
Transnational meeting for the Erasmus+ funded project ‘Increasing SME
engagement in apprenticeships held by Council - During week
commencing 25 June the Council hosted the final transnational meeting for
the Erasmus+ funded project ‘Increasing SME engagement in
apprenticeships’. Our international partners from Bulgaria, Canada, Germany
and Poland visited for the week. During this time we delivered the multiplier
event, to share the outputs of the project, on Wednesday 27 June where 135
SMEs, apprenticeship providers, schools and public sector bodies heard
about the project outputs and a wider agenda around apprenticeships. The
event also included a Skills Marketplace.
2.2

Financial Information

2.2.1 Appendices 1 and 3 set out details of the current financial position on the
Council’s General Fund Revenue Budget and the Capital Programme
2018/19.
2.2.2 General Fund Revenue Budget
The following table summarises the overall financial position of the General
Fund Revenue Budget and the expected total spend for the year. This
information has been compiled using the best information made available to
Financial Services by the relevant spending officers as at 30 June 2018. In
summary the Council’s General Fund outturn is projected to be underspent by

Page 39

£3,800 against the approved budget. This represents a 0.03% underspend
against the original budget of £12,145,200.
General Fund Revenue Budget 2018/19 – Change Analysis
£

Net Council Budget for 2018/19 approved by Council on 5
March 2018 and Cabinet’s Maximum Budget is:

12,145,200

Up to the end of June 2018 expenditure less income totalled

2,346,240

In the remaining 9 months of year we expect net expenditure
to be

9,795,160

Total net revenue spend for the year is currently expected
to be
Total Projected Revenue (Under)/Overspend 2018/19

12,141,400
(3,800)

Appendix 1 outlines how the General Fund Revenue budget is divided
between the Portfolios of the Council and includes a detailed variance
analysis identifying the current proposed changes for quarter one against the
approved budget for each Portfolio area. Cabinet is recommended to approve
these changes.
The major variances detailed in Appendix 1 include:









Events - funding for the Cycling Tour of Britain and WW1 events
£10,000;
Waste Services – long term sickness cover £11,400;
Financial Services – vacant post (£26,300);
Additional investment interest from Property Fund (£13,000);
Parks And Street Care – slippage of Pet Cremation Scheme to 2019/20
£57,600;
Fleet – additional vehicle sale income slipped from 2017/18 (£17,000);
Housing Benefit Admin - additional Subsidy Grant and New Burdens
funding (£81,900), partly offset by a contribution to reserves £64,100;
Reduction in Minimum Revenue Provision due to slippage in the
2017/18 programme (£39,900);

Attached at Appendix 2 are details of the budget virements authorising the
usage of Earmarked Reserves and Revenue Budget Funds as approved by
the Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Director in accordance with
Financial Regulations. No virements were approved by Portfolio Holders for
amounts of £50,000 or less during quarter one.

Page 40

Efficiency/Budget Reduction Programme – Progress Update
Since 2014/15 Council have approved three separate budget reduction
programmes totalling £5.2m net of risk provision. Progress to date has been
positive and budget reductions achieved are in line with the profiled estimate.
Of the total programme £2.8m is still to be delivered over 2018/19 to 2022/23.
In 2018/19 the programme for the delivery of efficiencies totals £1,187,000.
Quarter 1 monitoring indicates that of this total £72,500 will be delayed to
2019/20, which includes delays in the introduction of the pet cremation project
and tree cutting services. The budget impacts of these deferred projects are
included in Appendix 1 and are accommodated within the current approved
2018/19 budget.
Delivery of the programme will continue to be monitored and updates provided
in future reports.
2.2.3 Capital Programme
Appendix 3 details the current projected position on the Capital Programme
and its’ financing for 2018/19, analysed by Portfolio, and this is summarised in
the table below. Cabinet is recommended to approve these changes.
Capital Budget 2018/19 - Change Analysis
£
Original 2018/19 budget approved by Council on 5 March
2018

8,374,000

Approved Capital Carry Forwards from 2017/18

2,025,000

Current approved budget for 2018/19

10,399,000

Proposed Quarter 1 Amendments to the 2018/19
Programme
Additional Schemes:
Muirfield Road Outdoor Gym – fully funded by grants and
contributions from St Albans Parish Council and Warren Hill
Action Group

16,000

Redhill Changing Room Refurbishment – fully funded by Asset
Management Reserve, NCC Contribution and base
maintenance revenue contribution.

47,700

Page 41

Additional CCTV for Smithy Crescent, Arnold and Gedling
Country Park funded from CCTV Replacement Reserve

21,000

Schemes identified for deferral:
Vehicle and Equipment Replacement – deferred due to
extended useful life (5 vehicles less that £50,000)

(138,000)

Schemes identified for deletion:
Ford Transit replacement – no longer required due to loss of
Gedling Homes Grounds Maintenance contract

(32,000)

Calverton Soft Play – scheme removed due to the extension of
the gym facilities. Alternative investment options to be
discussed with the Portfolio holder.

(140,000)

Total Proposed Amendments to the Capital Programme

(225,300)

Proposed Revised Capital Programme 2018/19
Actual Expenditure to Quarter 1 2018/19
Estimated Expenditure Quarter 2-4 2018/19
Projected Outturn 2018/19

10,173,700
695,726
9,477,974
10,173,700

Projected Capital Programme Variance 2018/19

0

There is a quarterly capital monitoring of the projects chaired by the S151
officer and attended by finance officers and project officers. This meeting is
pro-active in ensuring that the existing capital projects are delivered as
efficiently and quickly as possible.
Capital Programme Financing
The projected method of financing the current capital programme requirement
of £10,173,700 is detailed in Appendix 3 and summarised in the chart below:

Page 42

Capital Financing 2018/19
Grants &
Contributions,
£2,699,400, 26%

Borrowing,
£5,280,700, 52%
S106/CIL
Contributions,
£384,600, 4%
Revenue
Contributions,
£799,000, 8%
Capital Receipts ,
£1,010,000, 10%

Capital Receipt Monitoring
When the Council sells General Fund assets it is permitted to use this income
to fund capital expenditure. The initial capital receipts estimate for 2018/19
projected that £1,010,000 will be generated with the whole amount to be used
in financing the capital programme in 2018/19. There is no change to the
capital receipt estimate projected at quarter 1 monitoring.
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Monitoring
Officers have been requested to report to Cabinet on the progress with the
Community Infrastructure awards. In total, since the implementation of CIL
(15 October 2015), 113 liability notices have been issued and 88 Reliefs have
been granted either for new dwellings, residential extensions over 100 square
metres or residential annexes.
Since 15 October 2015 to 30 June 2018 the Council has received 41
payments across 26 developments totalling £766,032. Of this £113,698
(15%) is to be spent on the locality it has been collected via Neighbourhood
Funding. £38,301 (5%) is to be set aside to cover the administration costs as
permitted under the Regulations and the remaining £614,032 is to be spent on
the strategic infrastructure projects that are identified on the Regulation 123
list.
Up to the 30 June the Council has issued liability notices totalling £1,580,441
of which £814,408 is still to be collected. This is reliant upon the

Page 43

developments commencing and the applicants complying with the notice.
Each individual case for the outstanding monies is reviewed regularly and
where appropriate followed up by the CIL officer.
Alternative Options
3

Option – Not to amend the original Council approved budgets during the year
to reflect the latest projected outturn position.
Advantages:


The final outturn position of the Council can be easily compared to its
original intentions when the budget was set and areas of budget risk
identified.

Disadvantages:


Budgets not aligned to current budget pressures resulting in increased
likelihood of budget overspend and emerging Council priorities not being
addressed.



Restrict the effectiveness of medium term planning process and
preparation of the forward budget if pressures and areas of efficiency are
not readily identifiable during budget preparation.



Budget not reflective of latest performance information.

Reason for rejection – the option is not likely to result in the best outcomes in
financial management or support delivery of priorities.
Financial Implications
4

The nature of the report is such that it has significant resource implications
across the Council. The report itself demonstrates how resources are being
managed.

Appendices
5

Appendix 1 – General Fund Revenue Budget 2018/19 – Budgetary Control
Report
Appendix 2 – Use of Earmarked Reserves and Revenue Budget Funds
Appendix 3 - Capital Programme 2018/19 – Budgetary Control Report
Appendix 4 – Examples of Outcomes achieved during Quarter 1 2018/19

Page 44

Background Papers
6

Detailed Quarterly Budgetary Control Exception Reports

Recommendations
Members are recommended:
a) To note the progress against Improvement Actions and Performance
Indicators in the 2018/19 Gedling Plan;
b) To agree the amendments to the performance indicator targets set out in
paragraph 2.1.4;
c) To approve the General Fund Revenue Budget virements included in
Appendix 1;
d) To note the use of reserves and funds during quarter one as detailed in
Appendix 2;
e) To approve the changes to the capital programme included in paragraph
2.2.3. and refer to Council for approval the following amendment to the
capital programme:
 The removal of the Calverton Soft Play scheme (£140,000).
Reasons for Recommendations
7

To align the budgets to the current pressures and priorities and ensure the
delivery of Council objectives is supported.
To ensure Members are informed of the performance against the Gedling
Plan 2018/19.

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1

Grand Summary
Revenue Quarterly Budgetary Control Report

Community Development
Housing, Health & Well-being
Public Protection
Environment
Growth & Regeneration
Resources & Reputation

Quarter Ending 30 June 2018

Current
Approved
Budget
£
1,501,700
2,568,200
1,486,100
4,438,200
868,200
1,564,000

Profiled
Budget
Actual to date
£
£
256,900
223,257
306,112
129,396
176,016
179,499
286,809
153,473
110,000
-147,075
1,882,235
1,807,691

Variance
£
-33,643
-176,716
3,483
-133,336
-257,075
-74,544

-13
-58
2
-46
-234
-4

Projected
Outturn
£
1,516,400
2,508,400
1,491,100
4,509,300
868,200
1,465,100

Projected
Annual
Variance
£
14,700
-59,800
5,000
71,100
0
-98,900

%

12,426,400

3,018,072

2,346,240

-671,831

-22

12,358,500

-67,900

-311,000

0

0

0

0

-246,900

64,100

Total General Fund Quarter 1

12,115,400

3,018,072

2,346,240

-671,831

-22

12,111,600

-3,800

Net Council Budget (Cabinets General Fund Maximum Budget)

12,145,200

12,111,600

-33,600

Total Portfolio Budget

Page 47

Transfer to/ -from Earmarked Reserves **

Appendix 1

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO
BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Current
Approved
Budget
£'000

Community Grants
Supplies & Services

Page 48

Sports Development
Revenue Income
Community Centres
Employee Expenses
Premise Related Expenses

Latest
Projected
Outturn
£'000

Net Budget Variance

Favourable
£'000

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

Adverse
£'000
6.6

Grant funding support to Newstead Village Centre
for preparation of a business plan and continued
operation.

209.4

216.0

(68.5)

(70.8)

2.3

Mapperley Golf Club RPI increase on rent

148.0

146.9

1.1

52.1

53.6

1.5

Vacant Caretaker hours at Burton Road CC and
Brickyard CC
Flooring works at Westdale Lane CC to assist with
asset transfer

66.6

76.6

10.0

Markets & Events
Supplies & Services
All other budget heads
Including items previously reported
PORTFOLIO TOTAL

1,094.1

1,501.7

Additional funding for Cycling Tour of Britain and
WW1 events

1,094.1

1,516.4

3.4

18.1

Net Portfolio Total
£14.7K Adverse

Appendix 1

HOUSING, HEALTH & WELLBEING PORTFOLIO
BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Page 49

Housing Benefit Administration
Supplies & Services
Revenue Income

Leisure Centres
Employee Expenses
Premises Related Expenses
Carlton Forum Leisure Centre
Revenue Income
Arnold Theatre
Employee Expenses

Current
Approved
Budget

Latest
Projected
Outturn

£'000

£'000

31.2
(424.4)

32.8
(506.3)

1,535.6
817.9

1,529.9
823.7

(1,195.1)

(1,179.9)

141.8

138.6

Net Budget Variance

Favourable
£'000

Adverse
£'000

1.6
81.9

5.7
5.8
15.2

3.2

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

IT investment, funded from New Burdens grant.
Additional New Burdens funding, HB Admin
Subsidy Grant & Universal Credit support, partly
transferred to Reserves.
Savings due to vacancies.
NNDR inflation increase across the sites.
Delay in the issuing of credit notes in relation to
swimming club invoices from 2017/18.
Vacant posts.

Appendix 1

HOUSING, HEALTH & WELLBEING PORTFOLIO
BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Page 50

Richard Herrod Centre
Employee Expenses
Premises Related Expenses
Revenue Income

Current
Approved
Budget

Latest
Projected
Outturn

£'000

£'000

314.5
(359.3)

All other budget heads
Including items previously reported

1,706.0

PORTFOLIO TOTAL

2,568.2

313.5
(1.5)
(348.4)

Net Budget Variance

Favourable
£'000

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

Adverse
£'000

1.0
1.5
10.9

Vacant posts.
Utility savings.
Variance due to decline in bar sales and the
removal of the spectator income budget as no
longer charging for spectators.

1,706.0

2,508.4

93.3

33.5

Net Portfolio Total
£59.8K Favourable

Appendix 1

PUBLIC PROTECTION PORTFOLIO
BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Community Safety & Performance

Current
Approved
Budget

Latest
Projected
Outturn

£'000

£'000

46.2

51.2

Net Budget Variance

Favourable
£'000

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

Adverse
£'000
5.0

Cost of removing unauthorised encampment from
Richard Herrod playing field.

Page 51
All other budget heads
Including items previously reported
PORTFOLIO TOTAL

1,439.9

1,486.1

1,439.9

1,491.1

-

5.0

Net Portfolio Total
£5K Adverse

ENVIRONMENT PORTFOLIO

Appendix 1

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Current
Approved
Budget

Latest
Projected
Outturn

Net Budget Variance

Page 52

£'000

Favourable
£'000
£'000

Street Care
Income

(13.3)

(16.5)

Car Parks
Premises Expenses

116.6

119.5

Fleet Management
Income

(44.6)

(61.6)

Parks
Premises Expenses
Income

153.1
(141.2)

159.6
(138.0)

Parks - External Works
Employee Expenses
Income

336.4
(522.9)

340.8
(532.5)

Waste
Employees

1,547.4

1,558.8

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

Adverse
£'000

Additional income from Trade Sweeping contract
price increase.

3.2

2.9

NNDR inflation increases.

Additional income from vehicle sales slipped from
2017/18.

17.0

6.5
3.2

4.4

Arnot Hill Park Kiosk additional electricity costs.
Reduction in income from football and cricket
usage.

Gedling Homes 1 month contract extension.

9.6

11.4

Agency staff to cover long term sickness.

ENVIRONMENT PORTFOLIO

Appendix 1

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Current
Approved
Budget
£'000

Latest
Projected
Outturn

Net Budget Variance

Favourable
£'000
£'000

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

Adverse
£'000

PASC Efficiency Programme
Pet Cremation Service

Page 53

57.6

57.6

Hanging Baskets

6.2

6.2

Slippage of efficiency to 2019/20

Tree Teams

8.7

8.7

Rephasing of introduction of new teams - delayed
due to recruitment.

All other budget heads
(including items previously reported)

3,006.7

PORTFOLIO TOTAL

4,438.2

Slippage of project to 2019/20

3,006.7

4,509.3

29.8

100.9

Net Portfolio Total
£71.1K Adverse

Appendix 1

GROWTH & REGENERATION PORTFOLIO
BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Current
Approved
Budget
£'000

Latest
Projected
Outturn

Net Budget Variance

Favourable
£'000
£'000

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

Adverse
£'000

Page 54
All other budget heads
(including items previously reported)

868.2

PORTFOLIO TOTAL

868.2

868.2

868.2

-

-

Net Portfolio Total
No Variance

Appendix 1

RESOURCES & REPUTATION PORTFOLIO
BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Current
Approved
Budget
£'000

Latest
Projected
Outturn
£'000

Page 55

Corporate Management
Employee Expenses

566.7

541.7

Supplies & Services

173.2

198.2

Net Budget Variance

Favourable
£'000

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

Adverse
£'000

23.0
23.0

Vacant Chief Executive post savings offset by
recruitment advertising and consultancy costs.

Legal Services
Court Fees Income

(6.5)

(16.5)

10.0

Registration of Electors
Employee Expenses

77.3

72.4

4.9

Vacant Senior Democratic Services Officer post.

Business Units
Income

(206.4)

(208.1)

1.7

Additional income from Service Charges.

Public Offices
Income

(244.9)

(252.9)

8.0

Increased rental income from RPI adjustments and
additional office space hire.

Insurance Premiums
Supplies & Services

312.6

317.5

Interest
Income

(68.5)

(81.5)

Legal Fees reclaimed in association with the Wind
Turbine case.

4.9

13.0

Inflationary increase.

Additional interest from Property Fund.

Appendix 1

RESOURCES & REPUTATION PORTFOLIO
BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Current
Approved
Budget
£'000

Page 56

Financial Services
Employee Expenses

Latest
Projected
Outturn
£'000

Net Budget Variance

Favourable
£'000

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

Adverse
£'000

634.7

608.4

26.3

Vacant Post.

595.7

555.8

39.9

Reduction in Minimum Revenue Provision due to
slippage in the 2017/18 capital programme.

(269.9)

(269.9)

1,564.0

1,465.1

Movement In Reserves
Capital Interest

All other budget heads
(including items previously reported)
PORTFOLIO TOTAL

126.8

27.9

Net Portfolio Total
£98.9K Favourable

EARMARKED RESERVES
BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - JUNE 2018
REVENUE ITEMS TO BE REPORTED

Budget Head

Current
Approved
Budget

Latest
Projected
Outturn

£'000

£'000

0.0

64.1

0.0

64.1

Net Budget Variance

Favourable
£'000

Reason for Variance
(New Items Only)

Adverse
£'000

Transfer to/from Reserves

Page 57

Housing Needs
Housing Benefit Administration
Contribution to Reserves

RESERVES TOTAL

0.0

64.1

Additional New Burdens grant received

64.1

Net Reserves Total
£64.1K Net Contribution to Reserves

Appendix 3

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT - CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING

EXPENDITURE
Community Development
Housing, Health & Wellbeing
Public Protection
Environment
Resources & Reputation

Carry
Revised
Quarter 1 Revised Cap
Original
Virements/
Cap Prog
Proposals Prog inc Qtr 1
Capital Forwards
Supplements
Program
inc c/f & supp to Cabinet
Proposals
me
£000's
£000's
£000's
£000's
£000's
0.0
7.6
0.0
7.6
7.6
2650.8
1376.7
0.0
4027.5
-92.3
3935.2
900.0
62.1
0.0
962.1
21.0
983.1
1723.2
507.4
0.0
2230.6
-154.0
2076.6
3100.0
71.2
0.0
3171.2
3171.2

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
RESOURCES
Borrowing
Capital Receipts
Revenue Contributions
Revenue Contribution
Economic Development Fund
NNDR Pool Reserve
Cinderpath (AM Reserve)
Asset Mgmt Reserve
King George V CCTV
CCTV Reserve
CIL/S106 Contributions
S106 Commuted Sum
S106 Gedling Country park
S106 Arnot Hill Play Area
CIL Contribution (KGV CCTV)
Grants & Contributions
Disabled Facilities Grant
HCA Starter Homes
WREN Grant - Haywood Road
WREN Grant - Arnot Hill Play Area
WREN Grant - Cinder Path Netherfield
Warren Hill Action Group (Muirfield)
NCC Contribution (Redhill Changing Rooms)
Bestwood Parish Council
N2 Growth Fund (Arnold)
N2 Growth Fund (Carlton)

8374.0

2025.0

4548.9
1010.0

1041.8

TOTAL RESOURCES
UNDER/(OVER RESOURCED)

8374.0
0.0

0.0

Page 58

426.2
304.1
10.0
5.0

270.0
34.8
74.8
5.0
900.0
160.3
50.0

62.1

50.0
46.0

1050.0
350.0

10399.0

-225.3

10173.7

5590.7
1010.0

-310.0

5280.7
1010.0

0.0
426.2
304.1
10.0
0.0
5.0
0.0

8.8

8.8
426.2
304.1
10.0
23.9
5.0
21.0

23.9
21.0

0.0
0.0

695.7

36.7
426.2
304.1
10.0
5.0
21.0

9478.0

10173.7

5280.7
1010.0

5280.7
1010.0

-27.9
0.0
0.0
0.0
23.9
0.0
0.0

8.8
426.2
304.1
10.0
23.9
5.0
21.0

270.0
34.8
74.8
5.0

270.0
34.8
74.8
5.0

270.0
34.8
74.8
5.0

270.0
34.8
74.8
5.0

962.1
160.3
50.0
50.0
46.0
0.0
0.0

962.1
160.3
50.0
50.0
46.0
12.0
15.0
4.0
1050.0
350.0

962.1
160.3
50.0
50.0
46.0
12.0
15.0
4.0
1050.0
350.0

962.1
160.3
50.0
50.0
46.0
12.0
15.0
4.0
1050.0
350.0

9370.7

10173.7
0.0

12.0
15.0
4.0

1050.0
350.0
2025.0
0.0

Actual Estimate Latest
To
for
Projected
Date
Qtr 2-4 Outturn
£000's £000's
£000's
-2.1
9.7
7.6
297.7 3637.5
3935.2
131.1
852.0
983.1
254.6 1822.0
2076.6
14.4 3156.8
3171.2

10399.0
0.0

-225.3
0.0

NOTES :All budgets are grossed up with any contribution from outside bodies shown as income in the Resources section.

10173.7
0.0

803.0

Appendix 2

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves and Revenue Budget Funds
Quarter Ended June 2018
As approved by Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Director in Accordance with the delegations
outlined in the Financial Regulations.

Usage of Earmarked Reserves
£
1.

2.

3.

4.

Community Development
Funding for Changing Lifestyles Social Prescription Project
Contribution from Earmarked Grants

8,800
(8,800)

Funding for Twinning Initiative
Contribution from Efficiency & Innovation Reserve

6,100
(6,100)

Funding for Heritage Brough Alive Project
Contribution from Earmarked Grant

32,100
(32,100)

Housing Health & Wellbeing
Funding for Leisure Transformation Feasibility
Contribution from Transformation Reserve

90,000
(90,000)

Funding for Leisure Transformation Coordinator Post
Contribution from Transformation Reserve

37,400
(37.400)

Funding for Redhill LC changing room refurbishment (Base Maintenance)
Contribution from Asset Management Reserve

32,700
(32,700)

Funding for pool management qualification
Contribution from Risk Management Reserve

3,300
(3,300)

Funding for Standby Allowance
Contribution from Homelessness Earmarked Grant

4,500
(4,500)

Public Protection
Funding for Hospital to Home Budget (Grant funded scheme)
Contribution from Hospital to Home Earmarked Grant

26,500
(26,500)

Funding for additional CCTV at Smith Crescent and Gedling Country Park
Contribution from CCTV Reserve

21,000
(21,000)

Environment
Funding for Fire Risk Assessments
Contribution from Risk Management Reserve

11,600
(11,600)

Page 59

Appendix 2
Funding for Health & Safety training
Contribution from Risk Management Reserve
5.

Resources & Reputation
Funding for Killisick Lane consultancy fees
Contribution from Asset Management Reserve

400
(400)

10,900
(10,900)

Funding for Asbestos removal at Stanhope Crescent and Beechwood Road
Contributions from Risk Management Reserve

5,900
(5,900)

Funding for lone working device subscription
Contribution from Risk Management Reserve

3,500
(3.500)

Funding for Fire Safety training courses
Contribution from Risk Management Reserve

900
(900)

Funding for Summer School placement
Contribution from Apprentice Reserve

General Fund Total

4,700
(4,700)

£0

Usage of Revenue Budget Funds
£
No usage of Revenue Budget Funds in quarter 1.
General Fund Total

£0

Page 60

Appendix 4

Examples of Achievements and Activities
During
Quarter 1 2018/19

Page 61

PEOPLE
Reduce anti-social behaviour, crime and the fear of crime
Significant partnership working between Gedling Borough Council and the Police and
other agencies in response to knife crime issues in Arnold - These measures included
increased CCTV monitoring, work to install additional CCTV cameras, targeted enforcement
against known individuals, additional patrolling by the Police and Neighbourhood wardens and
the commencement of a program of engagement with youths who are at risk of being caught up
in knife related crime.
Improved contact with Police - An external ‘yellow’ phone and an internal phone have been
installed by Nottinghamshire Police. These telephones allow customers to report or discuss any
crime directly with Nottinghamshire Police personnel.

Reduce hardship and provide support to the most vulnerable
Grant for WeRHere - The Council has agreed to provide a grant of £10,000 to local organisation
WeRHere to support the provision of free, independent, impartial and confidential counselling
services to individuals and families experiencing trauma.
Senior’s Council supports new Social Prescribing Project - A stakeholder event was held in
conjunction with the Senior’s Council to introduce and consult with partners and members of the
community on the new Social Prescribing project. Themes included; volunteers (Community
Navigators), the referral pathway and the community fund. The event was well received and
attended by over 40 individuals.
Senior’s Council propose a Directory of Services - The Council supported the June Seniors
Council Meeting. A presentation was organised from Nottinghamshire County Council to give an
overview of the Notts Help Yourself website and a small workshop around the Seniors Council
directory was facilitated by the Vice Chair.
Grant for Gedling Play Forum - The Council has agreed to provide grant funding of £5,000 to
Gedling Play Forum for 2018/19. The service provided by the Play Forum will include the
delivery of creative play activities at local events, training and advice for local play practitioners
and membership for the Council of its Forum’s Scrap Store at Wollaton Avenue Community
Centre.

Promote and encourage pride, good citizenship and participation in the local
area
Support for Remembrance Day Parades - Following meeting with representatives from Arnold
Royal British legion and All Hallows Parish Church, the Council has agreed to support this year’s
Remembrance Day Parades in Arnold and Gedling on 11 November. The Council will be
commissioning a Traffic Management Company to support the local groups with their
organisation of the parades between the local church and the local war memorial.

Page 62

Arnold Carnival - There were big crowds again at this year’s Carnival over two days in June.
The event offered a broad range of stage entertainment, walkabout artists, young people’s
activities and a fun fair. Gedling Play Forum offered arts and crafts and inflatable fun, while a
new outdoor market place was available for local traders and charities.
Volunteers Leading Local Heritage Projects - As part of the Council’s Heritage Lottery Funded
Gedling Borough’s Heritage Brought Alive project, a number of volunteers have been recruited to
lead on different aspects of the project. These include heritage walks, attending local events,
delivering events as part of the new Gedling Borough Heritage Festival and designing projects
such as a natural history trail for Gedling Country Park, a local history book, a local heritage website
and a local history film.
Inaugural Meeting of new Youth Council - The Mayor of Gedling hosted the inaugural meeting
of the newly elected Gedling Youth Council on Monday 23rd April. The young people drawn from
local secondary schools and youth clubs will develop their plans for the next two years that will
include working with the Gedling Senior Council to explore issues of social isolation.
Gedling Borough Heritage Festival - The first Gedling Borough Heritage Festival has
commenced as part of the Heritage Lottery Funded Gedling Borough’s Heritage Brought Alive
project. The Festival was launched at the Arnold Carnival where residents could contribute to
heritage mosaic artwork destined for the Gedling Country Park Visitor Centre. The Festival
included volunteer led heritage walks at Moor Pond Woods, Burton Joyce, Gedling, Stoke
Bardolph, Mapperley and Newstead Abbey. It also includes talks from local historians and a
Railway History fair. In July the Festival will reach its climax with the Gedling Gala and the
historic film ‘Arnold on Film’ at the Bonington Theatre.
WW1 Heritage Lottery Funding for Flying High Expressive Arts Company - Flying High
Expressive Arts Company have been successful in their bid to the First World War ‘Then and
Now’ Heritage Lottery Fund. With support Gedling Borough Council and Inspire Flying High have
been awarded £10K to deliver:





A professional play ‘Dear Lucy’ which is based on original letters received from the front
line. The play will be performed locally and will go up to the Edinburgh Festival Fringe for
10 days in August.
A series of performing arts workshops with schools and local groups responding creatively
to the theme.
A new website which will record all of the research/film/music/scripts etc. from the project
as a resource for the public top access.
A performing arts holiday project for 8-16 year olds culminating in a performance at the
Bonington Theatre at the end of August.

Twinning - In April the Mayor hosted a group, including the Mayor, from Vandœuvre-lès-Nancy,
Gedling’s twin town in France. The group visited a number of places in the Borough and a very
useful meeting was held to discuss how we can use the links with Vandœuvre to in the future to
build relationships.
Community Governance Review - Following the conclusion of a Community Governance
Review which asked the Council to establish a new parish council to exclusively serve the
community of Bestwood Village, voters went to the polls to elect parish councillors for the newly
created Bestwood Village and St Albans Parish Councils. The poll held in May elected 16 new
councillors to serve on the new parish councils. The two new councils can now set their own
Page
63need.
priorities and make spending decisions based
on local

Improve health and wellbeing
Provision of a falls prevention session - Everyone Health & GBC are working in partnership to
provide a falls prevention session aimed at people aged 55yrs+, which aims to improve balance,
strength and co-ordination. There is also a chance for customers to socialise and meet new
friends afterwards. The session takes place at Carlton Forum Leisure Centre on Friday’s from
11am to 12noon.
Carlton Forum fitness suite refurbishment - Carlton Forum Leisure Centre’s fitness suite was
refurbished and re-opened to customer on the 11th April. The facility has:






Brand new energy efficient equipment by Pulse Fitness
Extension to free weight training area including plate loaded machines
Additional multi-functional equipment and workout space
Introducing some innovative and advanced training tools
Fresh decoration, flooring and lighting

Improvements at Carlton Forum for customers with visual impairments - We’ve engaged
with an ex RNIB consultant to carry out a detailed assessment of Carlton Forum LC to help target
improvement works to the site which will help customers with visual impairment.
Free leisure centre access for registered carers - The leisure department is working in
partnership with EM Carers to provide free access to gym, swim and classes for registered carers
who wouldn’t ordinarily be able to commit to a gym membership due to their commitments caring
for a loved one. There are currently 24 carers on the scheme who have collectively used the
leisure centres 122 times in Q1. (From September 24 new carers will be given the opportunity to
use the facilities for free).
Smoke Free Arnold Carnival - This year the Council designated the whole of the Arnold
Carnival site on Arnot Hill Park as Smoke Free, as part of the countywide initiative to introduce
smoke free events.
Gedling Health and Wellbeing Delivery Plan - A new Health and Wellbeing Delivery Plan for
Gedling has been created to direct the Council’s plans to deliver aspects of the Nottinghamshire
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The Delivery plan aims to reduce health inequalities and improve
the health and wellbeing of Gedling Borough residents. The plan will be adopted by cabinet in
September.
New Outdoor Gym and Zip Wire for Bestwood Village - The Council has supported a
successful Local Improvement Scheme application for the Bestwood Healthy Communities
Programme; £9585 awarded towards outdoor gym equipment and a zip wire. Match funding has
been provided through Section 106 funding.

Page 64

Bestwood Village Healthy Communities Programme - A local coordinator funded by Section
106 funding has been working alongside the Bestwood Village Healthy Communities Steering
Group for the last two years. The post which came to an end in March 2018 has delivered a
number of projects for the village including:
















Weekly parkrun with 19 volunteers and an average of 90 runners a week
Falls Prevention 12 week course for 8 residents who were then signposted to Age UK.
A skate jam event in the village for 30 young people
Dementia awareness sessions for 10 local residents held at Eden Lodge Care Home
A free smoking cessation course held at Eden Lodge Care Home
The Complete Puzzle Group has been established; a new stay and play group for children
with autism run by volunteers. An average of 15 children and 5 volunteers attend each
session.
Successful bid to Nottinghamshire County Council’s Local Improvement Scheme to part
fund a new Outdoor Gym and Zip-wire
Volunteers clearing community garden land for planting.
Funding for an alternative community garden on Nottingham Community Housing
Association land to be maintained by local volunteers, including children from the local
school.
A new bench in Bestwood Country Park.
A Bestwood Healthy Communities newsletter circulated to households in the village.
Plans to develop a Village Team of volunteers to undertake tasks in the village.
Additional resources allocated to and enabled in the village during the programme equates
to £10,577. This includes external funding, officer time and the equivalent cost of
volunteer time.

Carlton-le-Willows Improver Running Sessions - Evening Improver Running Track sessions
have been supported to take place for the second year at Carlton-le-Willows Academy and will
run throughout the summer. Between 25-40 individuals have attended sessions each week
throughout May and June.
Community Health and Wellbeing Newsletter - 6th Edition of the Community Health and
Wellbeing Newsletter circulated to 2083 recipients. The following articles were included within the
newsletter; Dementia Action Week, Change Point adult weight management sessions, Age UK
falls prevention sessions, PHE Active 10 and Strokeabillity sessions.
SPRIING project to Support Isolated Older People - The branding and marketing plan is now
place for the Borough’s social prescribing project which is to be named SPRIING. Referrals and
befriender recruitment will begin in the summer, following the development of the referral and
data sharing processes. This 12 month pilot is funded by Jigsaw Homes and Gedling Borough
Council.
‘Engage’ Falls Prevention at Carlton Forum - New Falls prevention classes have been
launched at Carlton Forum Leisure Centre. The ENGAGE sessions are part of a countywide
initiative to reduce the number of falls and hospital admissions. The session includes an exercise
session and a social element at the end. A gym instructor has been trained to deliver the
sessions to enable long term sustainability of the sessions in Gedling.

Page 65

Mental Health Awareness Week - Mental Health Awareness week was promoted to staff and
the wider community through e-newsletters and social media. Information and tips, along with
local support groups and services, were promoted throughout the week. Let’s Talk Wellbeing
talking therapy service also held a drop in clinic at the Civic Centre.
Working with Local Football Clubs - The Gedling Football Development Group, facilitated by
the Council, met on 16th April, with representatives from 9 different clubs. Topics discussed
included Coach Education, 3G pitches and the Playing Pitch Strategy.
Redhill 3G One Year On - The ‘Redhill 1 year support day’ has been held with the Football
Foundation. A diverse Football Development Plan is now in place at the site; including
Diversionary, Disability, Female Specific sessions and Coach Education courses. An in depth
impact report has been developed to outline the key achievements over the past 12 months.
Colwick Play Day - Organised and funded by Colwick Parish Council and Gedling Borough
Council, the third Colwick Play day was held in June.
Over 1200 attended and Gedling Play Forum provided art & craft activities using materials that
would have gone to landfill, there was a mini skate-jam on the Joshua Dale Skate-park along with
Body Zorbs. The White Post Farm came with their mini petting zoo and Sherwood Bushcraft
were offering advice on how to be a young Bear Grilles. Peter Presto enthralled the audience
with his magic show; children could also take part in a drumming workshop, try their hand at
Street Dancing and face painting.
Spring Themed Children’s Event - This event was held at the Civic Centre in April and Gedling
Play Forum provided Arts & Crafts using recycled materials, Andy Harris provided a Drumming
workshop and Alistair Littlewood was the storyteller.
Over 200 children attended accompanied by adults. Various art & craft activities were on offer,
including making bunting to decorate the Civic Centre foyer railings.
Gedling Borough Arts Festival - The programme for this year’s Gedling Borough Arts Festival
has been confirmed and is being circulated. A committee comprising representatives from New
Writers UK, Gedling Homes, Inspire, Gedling Borough Council, Arnold Methodist Church and
Arnold Arts Society have programmed and organised the festival. It runs this year from 16th to
21st July at venues across the borough. Some of the activities on offer include craft, writing and
poetry workshops, concerts, dance performances and outdoor theatre.
Improvement Plan for Haywood Road Community Centre - The Council has been working
alongside Haywood Road Community Association to agree a plan of improvements for Haywood
Road Community Association funded by the Council. Proposals include improvements for the
toilet facilities and creating internal access to previously designated changing rooms. Meanwhile
the Community Association has been working hard to achieve the charitable status that will
enable them to apply for a longer-term lease from the Council.
Relaunch of Young Persons Positive Moves Dance Classes - Flying High Expressive Arts
Company has relaunched the Young Persons Positive Moves dance classes which were
previously delivered by the charity of the same name. Weekly sessions now take place at Pond
Hills Lane Community Centre for children and young people with additional needs. The classes
have proved to be extremely popular with around 15 young people attending each week. As a
result of this Flying High will offer places for young people with additional needs as part of their
Page 66
summer holiday project.

PLACE
Ensure local people are well prepared and able to complete for jobs
Speed networking and ‘have a go’ events - During quarter one Economic Growth has
delivered three combined speed networking and ‘have a go’ events. One at Joseph Whitaker to
200 year 10 students, one at Arnold Hill Academy to 240 year 9 students and one at Christ the
King to 157 year 10 students. The last of the school events for the 2017/18 academic year will be
a combined speed networking and careers fair delivered at Carlton le Willows on 17 July to 245
year 10 students. Across the academic year 1800+ students have received employability support
and increased their engagement with the employers and the world of work as the events provide
the opportunity for students to speak with a minimum of 11 employers across the morning
Transnational meeting for the Erasmus+ funded project ‘Increasing SME engagement in
apprenticeships held by Council - During week commencing 25 June the Council hosted the
final transnational meeting for the Erasmus+ funded project ‘Increasing SME engagement in
apprenticeships’. Our international partners from Bulgaria, Canada, Germany and Poland visited
for the week. During this time we delivered the multiplier event, to share the outputs of the
project, on Wednesday 27 June where 135 SMEs, apprenticeship providers, schools and public
sector bodies heard about the project outputs and a wider agenda around apprenticeships. The
event also included a Skills Marketplace and an opportunity to hear about international examples
of best practice in engagement of SMEs and uptake of learners and to hear the latest information
on UK apprenticeship policy reforms. A key part was hearing the experiences of SMEs that have
recruited apprentices and from the apprentices themselves on their experiences. The event was
positively received and a number of spin off activities are taking place as a result. The remainder
of the week focused on communicating the outputs and sharing best practice examples from the
project as well as looking at project sustainability past the term of the Erasmus+ funding.

Provide an attractive and sustainable local environment that local people can
enjoy and appreciate
Adoption of the Papplewick Conservation Area Appraisal - A Conservation Area Appraisal
was approved for Papplewick Conservation Area on 28th June 2018. The Appraisal identifies
those qualities that contribute to the area’s significance as a place of special architectural and
historic interest and provides a framework against which decisions about future development can
be made. The purpose of a Conservation Area is not to prevent development but rather to
manage change in an informed manner that preserves and enhances the Conservation Area
without harming its special character and appearance. A Management Plan has also been
prepared to set out broad planning guidance. As part of the preparation of these documents, the
boundary of the Conservation Area has been reviewed and an additional area of land to the north
west of the village is now included, to reflect the historic interest of the area and the contribution it
makes to the Conservation Area.

Page 67

Gedling Borough Heritage Strategy - The Council has adopted a new Heritage Strategy for the
Borough. This will direct the work of the Council for the next few years regarding work with and
support for our local heritage partners. Key actions include:








The delivery of the Gedling Borough’s Heritage Brought Alive project
Support for the Local Plan
Upkeep of the Historic Buildings at Risk Register
Development of a Gedling Borough Heritage Way footpath
Explore plans for a new Heritage Centre at Gedling Country Park
Consider how to support local heritage assets to have a long-term sustainable future
Develop long-term plans to work alongside local groups through the Gedling Borough
Heritage Forum

Gedling Country Park Nature - A nature trail has been planned for Gedling Country Park and
will be installed ready for the start of the school summer holidays. Eight wooden sculptures
depicting the wildlife that can be found on the park will be installed around the route of the DDA
path. An accompanying booklet has been produced and rubbing plaques and information panels
will be attached to the sculptures to encourage families to explore the trail. The trail has been
funded by Heritage Lottery with a match funding contribution from the Council and the Friends of
Gedling Country Park.

Page 68

PERFORMANCE
Improve the customer experience of dealing with the Council/ Give taxpayers
value for money
Dynamic Council - A number of enhancements are being developed through the Councils
Dynamic Council initiative for example:















A Mobile Device Management solution has been procured and is being successfully piloted.
This will enable better management of devices remotely.
Alternative smartphones have been sourced and will shortly be piloted within the
organization
A number of in-house forms have been improved or developed for use by customers and
staff;
A housing disrepair tenant questionnaire is ready for testing (currently a paper form)
Five new leisure forms have been created to streamline the cancellation, suspension and
change in membership processes, moving them from a paper based system
Final changes to the Councillor Enquiry System have been implemented
Several new waste forms and enhancements to existing forms
Improvements to the existing parts of the employee claims system in respect of notifications
Improvements to the annual leave digital system
Ongoing work on all in-house systems in respect of security rewrites and GDPR. Including
delete functions and changes to the requests for information system
Requested changes to the newly created overtime, stand by and call out digital forms have
been finalized and are undergoing final testing and roll out
Enhancements to the Taxi Booking system
Work commenced on assistance with online payments for Arnold Market stalls
An online refund form for Revenues is with the team for testing

Award for Communications team - The Communications Team were shortlisted for an MJ award
GDPR Compliance – To ensure that the council is compliant with General Data Protection
Regulations the council as completed the following:
 Information Asset Register has been completed for all service areas
 Information Security Policy updated and approved by Cabinet
 Data Protection policy updated and approved by Cabinet
 Data Protection Officer and two deputies appointed
 Breach reporting procedure updated (new breach reporting form and a new dedicated
inbox for breach reporting and data protection issues)
 Completed desk top exercise to test application of the breach review form
 Training for FOI reps for each service area
 4 GDPR training sessions including two specialised sessions for public protection and
planning
 Information governance intranet page updated

Page 69

Maintain a positive and productive working environment and strong staff
morale
Mayor’s Fun Run - A staff 5km Fun Run was organised to support the Mayor’s Charity. Around
30 members of staff took part in the event and positive feedback was provided with suggestions
of making it an annual event.

Page 70

Agenda Item 6

Report to Cabinet
Subject:

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Annual Report

Date:

2nd August 2018

Author:

Mike Hill – Acting Chief Executive

Wards Affected
All
Purpose
To provide Members with information on the monies collected through the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), how it is administrated and an update on
the Parish and Non-Parish Neighbourhood Funding.
To agree to the publication the CIL Annual Report for 2017/18 attached in
Appendix A.
Key Decision
This is not a Key Decision.
Background
1.1.

The Gedling Borough Council Community Infrastructure Levy Charging
Schedule came into effect on 16 October 2015. The amount of CIL liable
is dependent on where the development is located within the Borough, the
type of use proposed, the amount of floor space being created and the
amount that is being lost i.e. through demolition or change of use, subject
to legislation-based exemptions as they may be applied from time to time.

1.2.

The majority of the money collected will be spent on infrastructure defined
on the Council’s Regulation 123 list. The Regulation 123 list was originally
informed by the Infrastructure Delivery Plan which confirmed the
infrastructure requirements for the development proposals identified in the
Aligned Core Strategy. The four specific projects that the Council
proposed to fund, partly or wholly, through Community Infrastructure Levy

Page 71

receipts, and were submitted as part of the submissions for the
Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule examination are:


the Gedling Access Road,



secondary school contributions for Gedling Colliery /Chase Farm
and Top Wighay Farm strategic sites,



the Gedling Country Park visitor centre.

1.3.

It was confirmed at the hearing session that these projects had been
prioritised over other infrastructure in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan
because of their importance in assisting delivery of two of the strategic
sites in the Aligned Core Strategy – Gedling Colliery / Chase Farm and
Top Wighay Farm. It was important that projects were strategic in nature
otherwise it would be more appropriate to use s106 contributions. In
addition, in order to gain the support for the R123 list at examination the
guidance the Council received from its consultants and from the CIL front
runner authorities was to include a range of different types of infrastructure
which was part of the justification for the inclusion of the Gedling Visitor
centre.

1.4.

It was recognised at the time that the Regulation 123 list was not
exhaustive and would be subject to further change in the future but the
purpose was to provide a useful guide as to the direction the Borough
Council envisaged taking in providing for the delivery of infrastructure to
support the development plan.

1.5.

Under the CIL regulations a ‘meaningful proportion of CIL receipts are to
be passed to local town or parish council for the area where development
takes place. This is known as the ‘neighbourhood portion’.
The
neighbourhood portion to be passed to the local council is set at 15% of
the relevant CIL receipts (up to a cap of £100 per existing council tax
dwelling) or 25% with no maximum cap specified where there is a
Neighbourhood Development Plan in place. At this time only Calverton
and Papplewick Parish have a Neighbourhood Plan ‘made’.

1.6.

Where there is no Parish Council, Regulation 59A of the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) (“the 2010
Regulations”) places a duty on charging authorities to allocate at least

Page 72

15% (up to a cap of £100 per existing council tax dwelling) or 25%
(uncapped) where there is a ‘made’ Neighbourhood Plan, of CIL receipts
to spend on priorities that should be agreed with the local community in
areas where development is taking place.
1.7.

Where the chargeable development takes place in an area where there is
no parish council, the charging authority retains the levy receipts but must
spend the neighbourhood portion on, or to support, infrastructure in the
area where the chargeable development takes place. This must be done
in consultation with the local neighbourhood. The first consultation and
allocation of Non-Parish neighbourhood funding is currently being
undertaken.

1.8.

Regulation 61 allows the Council to apply up to 5% of collected CIL
receipts towards administrative expenses incurred during the operation of
a CIL.

1.9.

A Charging Authority is required under Regulation 62 of the 2010
Regulations to prepare a report for any financial year in which it collects
CIL. The 2017/18 CIL Annual Report will be published separately and
incorporated within the Authority Monitoring Report and will be published
on the Council’s dedicated CIL webpage (www.gedling.gov.uk/cil). The
2017/18 CIL Annual Report is attached for information.

Proposal
The purpose of this report is to keep Members up to date with information
on the current position of CIL monies collected and outstanding monies
due to the Council.
2017/18 Update
1.10. During the last financial year (2017/18), there has been £417,212.34
collected from 16 developments. Of this £62,581.85 is to be spent in the
locality it was collected (parish or non-parish neighbourhood funding),
£20,860.61 (5%) is to be set aside to cover the administration costs as
permitted under the 2010 Regulations and the remaining £333,769.88 is to
be spent on strategic infrastructure projects that are identified on the
Regulation 123 List.
1.11. The Council issued liability notices in 2017/18 for over £1.3m of which

Page 73

around £930k is still to be collected from these and historical invoices,
which is reliant upon the developments commencing and the applicants
complying with the notice. Each individual case for these outstanding
monies will need regularly reviewing and officers to follow up where
necessary.
Total CIL Collected
1.12. Since 16 October 2015 to 31 March 2018 the Council has received 36
payments across 25 developments totalling £459,331.34. Of this
£68,899.70 (15%) is to be spent on the locality it has been collected via
Neighbourhood Funding. £22,966.56 (5%) is to be set aside to cover the
administration costs as permitted under the Regulations and the remaining
£367,465.08 is to be spent on the strategic infrastructure projects that are
identified on the Regulation 123 list.
Annual Breakdown of Collected CIL
1.13. Table 1 provides an annual breakdown of CIL monies collected since 15th
October 2015.
Financial
Year

Strategic
Neighbourhood Administrative Total
Infrastructure Funding
Costs
Funding
(Regulation
123 List)

2017/2018

£333,769.88

£62,581.85

2016/2017

£33,695.20

£6,317.85

£2,105.95

£42,119.00

2015/2016

0

0

0

0

£367,465.08

£68,899.70

Total

£20,860.61 £417,212.34

£22,966.56 £459,331.34

Allocated Amounts
1.14. At this time only a budget has been agreed in relation to a single
Regulation 123 project, the Gedling Access Road. On 16 November
2016, Council approved a maximum contribution of £4.48 million towards
the Gedling Access Road to be financed by CIL receipts.

Page 74

Parish Funding
1.15. In the Parish areas a total of £16,026.45 has been collected as Parish
Neighbourhood Funding. Of the total amount, £9,996.69 has been
transferred directly to the Parish Councils during 2017/18. The remaining
£6,029.76 is held by the Council awaiting future claims by the Parishes.
Parish

Amount Transferred as of 31
March 2018

Linby

£483.00

Ravenshead

£6,579.69

Lambley

£2,184.00

Burton Joyce

£750.00

Non-Parish Funding
1.16. In the Non-Parish areas of Gedling a total of £52,873.25 has been
collected as of 31 March 2018 as Neighbourhood Funding. None of which
has been allocated to date.
1.17. The Council, in March 2017 prepared a Guidance Note titled ‘CIL and the
Neighbourhood Portion in Non-Parish Areas’ that can be found online at
www.gedling.gov.uk/NoParishCILNeighbourhoodFunding. It outlined the
approach that the Council will take to allocating this money in Non-Parish
Areas of Gedling. The approach provides an annual opportunity to invite
council officers, councillors, the local community and statutory
organisations to identify appropriate infrastructure projects for expenditure
of the neighbourhood portion of CIL receipts.
1.18. The available funding has to be used in accordance with Regulation 59F
of 2010 CIL Regulations (as amended) to support the development of the
area by funding:a) The provision, improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of

Page 75

infrastructure; or
b) Anything else that is concerned with addressing the demands that
development places on an area.
1.19. This definition allows the neighbourhood funding to be used to fund a very
broad range of facilities including play areas, parks and green spaces,
leisure facilities, transport, community and health and social care facilities.
1.20. Suitable schemes are currently being assessed by the Council. These will
be subject to a 4 week consultation period before schemes can be
approved.
Alternative Options
1.1.

There are no alternative options to pursue.

1.2.

The Council is required to prepare and publish a report for the financial
year under Regulation 62 of the 2010 Regulations before the end of
calendar year.

Financial Implications
1.3.

There are no financial implications.

1.4.

This report does not alter the amount of money that can be collected from
a development, but rather details what monies have been collected and
spent.

Appendices
Appendix 1: Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 2017/18 Annual Report
Background Papers
Gedling Borough Council CIL Charging Schedule http://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/Charging%20Schedule%20(Adoption%20July%
202015).pdf
Recommendation(s)
THAT:
a) Cabinet notes the report.

Page 76

b) Cabinet agrees the publication of the CIL Annual Report for 2017/18 as
detailed above.
Reasons for Recommendations
a) To provide information and make Cabinet aware of the operation of the
Community Infrastructure Levy in Gedling Borough.
b) To ensure that Council prepare and publish an annual financial report
required under Regulation 62 of the 2010 Regulations.

Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

Gedling Borough Council
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Regulation 62
Annual Report 2017/18

Page 79

1

1. Introduction
1.1. The Gedling Borough Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging
Schedule was approved by Full Council on the 15th July 2015 and came into
effect on the 16th October 2015. Planning applications decided on or after
the 16th October 2015 may therefore be subject to CIL.
1.2. The Borough Council will use CIL to secure fund towards strategic
infrastructure projects contained on the Council’s Regulation 123 List.
1.3. Regulation 62 of the CIL Regulations (as amended) requires a Charging
Authority to:

“Prepare a report for any financial year (“the reported year”) in which a) it collects CIL, or CIL is collected on its behalf; or
b) an amount of CIL collected by it or by another person on its behalf
(whether in the reported year or any other) has not been spent.”

1.4. The financial year to which this document relates is 2017/18 and the
information within it relates to the period from 1st April 2017 to 31st March
2018.
2. Monitoring
2.1. Table 1 sets out the CIL Monitoring information as required by Regulation
62(4) for the financial year 2017/18.
2.2. Table 2 provide a cumulative summary of total CIL collected and amounts
spent since CIL came into effect on 16th October 2015.
3. Further Information
3.1. Further information about the Gedling Borough CIL including the Charging
Schedule, Instalment Policy, and Regulation 123 to be funded by CIL can be
found on the Council’s website at www.gedling.gov.uk/cil or by contacting the
CIL Officer on 0115 901 3731 or by e-mail at cil@gedling.gov.uk.

Page 80

2

Table 1 – Gedling Borough CIL Monitoring Information 2017/18
Regulation 62
Reference
(3)

Description

Amount
Collected /
Project
Title

Land payments made in respect of CIL charged by the Borough Council, and CIL collected by
way of a land payment which has not been spent if at the end of the reported year;a) Development consistent with a relevant purpose has not commenced on the acquired land;

Zero

or

Page 81

4 (a)
4 (b)
4 (c) (i)
4 (c) (ii)
4 (c) (iii)
4 (c) (iv)
4 (c) (ca) (i)
4 (c) (ca) (ii)
4 (c) (cb)

b) The acquired land (in whole or in part) has been used or disposed of for a purpose other than
a relevant purpose; and the amount deemed to be CIL by virtue of regulation 73(9) has not
been spent.
Total CIL receipts for the reported year
Total CIL expenditure for the reported year
The items of infrastructure to which CIL (including land payments) has been applied
Amount of CIL expenditure on each item
Amount of CIL applied to repay money borrowed, including any interest, with details of the
infrastructure items which that money was used to provide (wholly or in part)
Amount of CIL applied to administrative expenses pursuant to Regulation 61, and that amount
expressed as a percentage of CIL collected in that year in accordance with that regulation.
The amount of CIL passed to any local council under regulation 59A or 59B
The amount of CIL passed to any person under regulation 59(4)
Summary details of the receipt and expenditure of CIL to which Regulation 59E or 59F applied
during the reported year including:
(i) The total CIL receipts that regulations 59E and 59F applied to
(ii) The items to which the CIL receipts to which regulations 59E and 59F applied have been

Zero
£417,212.34
£30,857.30
£ Zero
£ Zero
£ Zero
£20,860.61
(5%)
£ 9,996.69
£ Zero

£ 50,397.35
None
3

applied; and
4 (c) (cc) (ii)

4 (d)

(iii) The amount of expenditure on each item
Summary details of any notices served in accordance with regulation 59E, including:

£ Zero

(i) The total value of CIL receipts requested from each local council; and

None

(ii) Any funds not yet recovered from each local council at the end of the reported year.
Total amount of CIL receipts retained at the end of the reported year.

None
£426,368.09

Page 82
4

Table 2 – Gedling Borough CIL Monitoring Information Cumulative Summary from 15th October 2015 to 31st March 2018
Regulation 62
Reference
(3)

Description

Amount
Collected /
Project
Title

Land payments made in respect of CIL charged by the Borough Council, and CIL collected by
way of a land payment which has not been spent if at the end of the reported year;c) Development consistent with a relevant purpose has not commenced on the acquired land;

Zero

or

Page 83

4 (a)
4 (b)
4 (c) (i)
4 (c) (ii)
4 (c) (iii)
4 (c) (iv)
4 (c) (ca) (i)
4 (c) (ca) (ii)
4 (c) (cb)

d) The acquired land (in whole or in part) has been used or disposed of for a purpose other than
a relevant purpose; and the amount deemed to be CIL by virtue of regulation 73(9) has not
been spent.
Total CIL receipts
Total CIL expenditure
The items of infrastructure to which CIL (including land payments) has been applied
Amount of CIL expenditure on each item
Amount of CIL applied to repay money borrowed, including any interest, with details of the
infrastructure items which that money was used to provide (wholly or in part)
Amount of CIL applied to administrative expenses pursuant to Regulation 61, and that amount
expressed as a percentage of CIL collected in that year i
The amount of CIL passed to any local council under regulation 59A or 59B
The amount of CIL passed to any person under regulation 59(4)
Summary details of the receipt and expenditure of CIL to which Regulation 59E or 59F applied
including:
(iv) The total CIL receipts that regulations 59E and 59F applied to
(v) The items to which the CIL receipts to which regulations 59E and 59F applied have been

Zero
£459,331.34
£32,963.25
£ Zero
£ Zero
£ Zero
£22,966.56
(5%)
£ 9,996.69
£ Zero

£ 52,873.25
None
5

applied; and
4 (c) (cc) (ii)

4 (d)

(vi) The amount of expenditure on each item
Summary details of any notices served in accordance with regulation 59E, including:

£ Zero

(iii) The total value of CIL receipts requested from each local council; and

None

(iv) Any funds not yet recovered from each local council at the end of the reported year.
Total amount of CIL receipts retained at 31st March 2018

None
£426,368.09

Page 84
6

Agenda Item 7

Report to Cabinet
Subject:

Updates to the Complaints, Compliments and Comments Policy

Date:

2 August 2018

Author:

Service Manager – Customer Services and Communications

Wards Affected
Borough wide.
Purpose
To seek approval on the changes to the Complaints, Compliments and
Comments Policy.
Key Decision
This is not a key decision.
Background
1.1

The current policy framework consists of three documents and has been in
place since 2010. Following the publication, by Government, of a code of
practice relating to English language requirements for public sector
workers, a full review of the policy and associated documents took place,
rather than simply adding the requirement.

1.2

The policy has been amalgamated to two documents and drafts of these
were sent to; Service Managers, the Customer Insight Officer, members of
the Customer Focus Group and departmental complaints representatives
for consultation. Amendments/additions were made in accordance with the
responses received.

1.3

The Code of Practice on the English language requirements for public
sector workers requires all public authorities to operate a complaints
procedure so that if a member of the public feels that a public-facing public
authority worker has insufficient proficiency in spoken English for the
performance of their role they can make a formal complaint to the public
authority which is then investigated and a response provided. The updated

Page 85

Complaints, Compliments and Comments Policy now includes a paragraph
to make it clear that such a complaint will be dealt with in accordance with
that policy.
1.4

In addition, minor amendments have been made to insert correct job titles,
update the references to the Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman and to strengthen the definitions of complaints and
compliments.

1.5

The Unreasonably Persistent Complainants Policy and guidance document
have been amalgamated into one comprehensive policy document.

1.6

In addition to the policy documents, a customer friendly leaflet and poster
have been designed to communicate the key elements of the Complaints,
Compliments and Comments Policy clearly to customers.

Proposal
2.1

It is proposed that Cabinet approve the updated Complaints, Compliments
and Comments Policy (Appendix 1) and updated Unreasonably Persistent
Complainants Policy (Appendix 2).

Alternative Options
3.1

The Council could decide not to have a policy relating to these matters.
However an effective and accessible Complaints, Compliments and
Comments Policy demonstrates the Council’s commitment to managing
customer feedback effectively, enables the Council to put things right
formally when they have gone wrong, allows us to make service
improvement and protects staff through the unreasonably persistent
complaints part of the policy.

Financial Implications
4.1

None.

Appendices
5.1

Appendix 1: Complaints, Compliments and Comments Policy
Appendix 2: Unreasonably Persistent Complainants Policy

Background Papers
6.1

None.

Page 86

Recommendations
THAT the:
a) Complaints, Compliments and Comments Policy at Appendix 1 be approved;
and
b) Unreasonably Persistent Complainants Policy at Appendix 2 be approved.
Reasons for Recommendations
To enable the Council to continue effectively managing customer feedback.
To ensure that the Council complies with the requirements of the Code of
Practice on the English language requirements for public sector workers.

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Report to Cabinet
Subject:

Advertising and Sponsorship Policy

Date:

2 August 2018

Author:

Sales & Marketing Manager

Wards Affected
All Wards
Purpose
1.1.

The report requests the approval to promote advertising and sponsorship
opportunities on council-owned assets to third parties. Approval is also
sought to open up new channels for advertising and sponsorship for both
the council and third parties, working with the Finance department to set
fees and charges and gaining approval for the fees from the relevant
Portfolio Holder.

1.2.

Approval is sought for the Advertising and Sponsorship Policy (Appendix
A) which will provide the framework by which advertising and sponsorship
can be accepted.

1.3.

Approval is also sought for appropriate Officer delegations to manage and
determine advertisement and sponsorship proposals.

Key Decision
This is not a key decision.
Background
2.1.

Cabinet approved the Dynamic Council framework on 12 October 2017.
As part of the framework’s Commercialisation Strategy the Council aims
to increase external funding by seeking sponsorship for and advertising
on Council-owned assets. Advertising and sponsorship can deliver a
range of benefits, including;


enhancing the Council’s reputation and service take up, by
providing platforms for advertising Council services and other
public sector messages and services to the public

Page 89




generating income to support the financial sustainability of services
supporting economic growth by providing value for money
advertising and sponsorship opportunities for businesses


2.2.

The UK has the world’s 4th largest advertising market valued at £22.1bn
and has reported growth for the last consecutive 17 quarters on top of 8
years of consecutive growth. This growth has predominantly been driven
by spend in digital advertising which accounts for half of all of the UK’s
advertising spend.

2.3.

It is reported that local advertising was valued at £2.6bn per year with
small businesses on average spending £1,630 on advertising per year.
Gedling’s business counts for 2017 indicated that there are 3,875 small
businesses in the borough. By simple extrapolation, this suggests a
potential local annual advertising market value in excess of £6m.

2.4

Current Advertising and Sponsorship Powers and Practices
The Council has a range of statutory powers to provide and charge for
advertising and sponsorship, including the following. The Local
Government Act 1972 gives a general power to authorities to publicise
information concerning the services available within the area of the
authority provided either by the authority or by other authorities or by
government departments or by charities and other voluntary
organisations, and other information relating to the functions of the
authority. The Secretary of State has issued guidance under s.4 of the
Local Government Act 1986 in relation to the content of Local Authority
publicity which needs to be taken into account when advertising and is
referenced in the proposed policy document at Appendix A.
Under Section 139 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council may
accept any gifts of property for the purposes of discharging any of its
functions.
The Localism Act 2011 provides authorities with the power to charge for
advertising and sponsorship opportunities, and s.38 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 gives the authority the
power to sell, under agreement, spare computer capacity, for example
web space. In addition, the Local Authority (Goods and Services) Act
1970 provides local authorities with the power to provide goods and
certain services and facilities to other public authorities by agreement for
a reasonable charge. So the Council could sell advertising space and
offer sponsorship opportunities and recover the costs of so doing, the
income from such activities to be used in supporting Council services.
The Council currently advertises its own services via traditional offline

Page 90

channels including:


Internal print publications (contacts magazines, leaflets, posters,
booklets)



External print publications (local newspapers and newsletters)



Out of home advertising (bin lorries, posters in parks and posters
sites)

The council also makes use of other channels for promotion of it’s
services, although this is not undertaken as traditional advertising. These
include:


Digital channels (email, website)



Traditional PR



Organic social media



Face-to-face and events

In relation to the provision of advertising opportunities for third parties, the
council currently permits partner organisations and other local authorities
to advertise in its Contacts magazine on an ad hoc basis. The use of the
council’s TV screens, located at the Civic Centre, Leisure Centres and
Gedling Country Park for partner and local authority advertising has also
been approved.
2.5

Advertising & Sponsorship Processes
In order to formalise the current ad hoc arrangements the Council would
need to introduce a process for the booking, payment and delivery of
advertising and sponsorship opportunities for third parties.
An approved Advertising & Sponsorship Policy, along with the creation of
a structured booking process, including terms and conditions for
advertising, would enable the council to more effectively and prudently
run its advertising and sponsorship activities in the same way that other
media outlets do whilst ensuring compliance with the statutory code of
practice for local authority publicity and ensuring that all advertisements
have appropriate content.

2.6

Advertising Opportunities
Alongside the current advertising opportunities being used, there are a
number of council print publications and assets that could be opened up
to advertising for not only the council’s own services but also the services

Page 91

of partners, local authorities and external businesses.
Print
Print advertising could include:


Printed newsletters/magazines



Calendars



Leaflets and information cards

Out of Home
Out of home advertising is advertising that people are exposed to whilst
‘out of the home’. In terms of council assets this could include:


Poster/Banner sites (indoor and outdoor)



Advertisements on council vehicles



Leaflets



TV Screens

Digital Advertising
There are a number of opportunities for the council to open up its digital
advertising channels for promotion of its own services and external
advertisers.
Digital Advertising includes:


Website Advertising



Email Advertising



Social Media Advertising

With over 88% percent of the UK adult population now having access to
the internet at home and over 40% of internet users using smartphones to
surf the web, the UK’s uptake of digital media is booming. Having
overtaken print and broadcast advertising, digital accounts for more than
half of all UK advertising spend.
Not only does digital advertising give businesses the opportunity to
precisely target their customers (and it’s not just a market for younger
audience’s, OFCOM reported in 2017 that over half of over 74 year olds

Page 92

are internet users) it also allows detailed analysis of performance that
isn’t as easily derived from its offline counterparts, making it an extremely
accountable advertising channel.
2.7

Sponsorship Opportunities
The Council run a number of activities and services that could be offered
for sponsorship in order to recover costs of the activities. These include:


Council run events



Buildings and fixed assets



Parks, planters and floral displays

Sponsorship implies a deeper connection between the sponsor and
council than normal advertising and would normally include a range of
advertising and branding opportunities. It is therefore important that
careful consideration is given before sponsorship is offered or accepted
by the council.
Each sponsorship agreement would be looked at on an individual basis
and the council and potential sponsor would normally work together to
agree what a sponsorship package would include. A contract detailing the
offer would then be created and signed by both parties.
The Advertising and Sponsorship Policy aims to set the guidelines by
which sponsorship negotiations can take place.

2.8

Promotion Of Advertising And Sponsorship Opportunities
If approval for external advertising and sponsorship is given, the council
would need to have a compelling sales document to convey information
about the opportunities to potential/advertisers and sponsors. A media
pack detailing opportunities would be created and promoted.
Opportunities would be promoted via digital platforms, printed materials
and face to face and any opportunities would be subject to a written
agreement with the advertiser/sponsor.

2.9

Fees and Charges
Once the Advertising and Sponsorship Policy has been approved,
approval to set fees and charges will be sought from the Portfolio Holder.

Page 93

Proposal
3.1

In order to maximise awareness of the Council’s services and enable the
Council to run more effective promotional campaign, it is proposed that
Cabinet approves the advertising of Council services on council-owned
assets and in council-owned media, including those not currently used for
advertising.

3.2

It is proposed that Cabinet approves advertising on and sponsorship of
council-owned assets and media by third parties, enabling the council to
recover costs and provide an effective platform for businesses and public
sector organisations to promote their services. A framework for future
advertising and sponsorship activity is contained within the Advertising
and Sponsorship Policy at Appendix A, which Cabinet is asked to
approve.

3.3

To ensure that there is a consistent approach across the Council to
advertising and sponsorship which complies with legal requirements, it is
proposed that authority is given to the Director responsible for Sales and
Marketing to put formal processes in place for the booking, management
and delivery of advertising and sponsorship, including the preparation of
appropriate terms and conditions for advertisers and sponsors.

3.4

To ensure that Officers are able to secure advertising and sponsorship
opportunities in a timely fashion, it is proposed that Cabinet delegates the
responsibility for managing and determining advertisement and
sponsorship proposals to the Director responsible for the relevant service
area, in consultation with the Sales and Marketing Manager. Where the
advertising or sponsorship proposal relates to a number of services areas
it is proposed that responsibility is delegated to the Director responsible
for Sales and Marketing, in consultation with the Director(s) of the
relevant service area.

Alternative Options
4.1

An alternative option would be to continue to only permit advertising from
partner organisations and other local authorities rather than opening up
opportunities to external businesses. However, this is not recommended
as it will severely limit the opportunities to secure external funding from
advertising and sponsorship.
There is also the option to not allow the introduction of advertising and
sponsorship on new channels. Again, this is not recommended as the
main market for advertising lies in digital channels.

Financial Implications

Page 94

5.1

Approving advertising for the Council’s services on Council owned assets
and media, including those not currently used for advertising will enable
more effective promotion of the Council’s commercial services and
support the Council’s messaging. This has the potential to not only
generate extra income for the Council’s commercial activities but also to
facilitate cost savings by supporting promotion of cost saving initiatives.
As the Council have not yet implemented advertising on some of the
proposed channels it is difficult to forecast income, however, a previous
Council Tax email to reduce avoidable contact resulted in £7,000 worth of
savings
Approving advertising for third parties on Council owned assets will open
up new income generation streams. As a guide, if all advertising capacity
on the Council’s emails, website and Contacts magazine (capped at three
pages) were to be sold to third parties it would have the potential to
generate an income of £51,426.
Contacts Magazine - £9,036
Email Advertising - £26,040
Website Advertising - £16,350
However, it is unlikely that we would be able to sell all of our advertising
space immediately and once the effectiveness of promoting our own
services is ascertained it is likely that the amount of advertising offered to
third parties would be limited, in order to find the best balance for
maximising return from our own advertising and that of third parties.
The figures above are only based on a small number of advertising
income streams. However, if more advertising opportunities for third
parties are introduced, financial targets would be assigned to them as
part of the budget process.
The setting up of channels and assets for the purpose of advertising and
sponsorship can be met from existing resources.
The costs associated with the fulfilment of advertising and sponsorship
will be recovered from the sale of advertising and sponsorship. Any
additional income will be used to support the Council’s services. The
setting up of channels and assets for the purpose of advertising and
sponsorship can be met from existing resources.

Page 95

Appendices
6.1

Appendix A - Advertising and Sponsorship Policy

Background Papers
None
Recommendations
THAT Cabinet:
1) approves advertising of the council’s services on council-owned
assets and media, including those not currently used for
advertising, enabling the Council to run more effective promotional
campaigns.
2) approves the advertising on and sponsorship of Council-owned
assets from third parties, thereby providing an effective platform for
businesses and public organisations to promote their services.
3) authorises the Director responsible for Sales and Marketing to put
formal processes in place for the booking, management and
delivery of advertising and sponsorship, including the preparation
of appropriate terms and conditions for advertisers and sponsors.
4) approves the Advertising and Sponsorship Policy at Appendix A
which provides a framework for future advertising and sponsorship
activity.
5) delegates authority for managing and approving advertisement and
sponsorship proposals to the Director responsible for the relevant
service area, in consultation with the Sales and Marketing
Manager. Where the advertising or sponsorship proposal relates to
a number of services areas authority is delegated to the Director
responsible for Sales & Marketing, in consultation with the
Director(s) of the relevant service areas to manage and approve
such proposals.

Reasons for Recommendations
To enable the Council to generate income from third parties from advertising on
and sponsorship of Council-owned assets and media, and to ensure effective
promotion of Council Services.
To ensure that advertising and sponsorship activity is undertaken consistently, in

Page 96

line with agreed processes and in line with the Government’s Code of Practice
for publicity and to ensure that the Executive are not over burdened with
operational decision making in relation to advertising and sponsorship.

Page 97

This page is intentionally left blank

ADVERTISING AND SPONSORSHIP POLICY

1. Introduction
Gedling Borough Council (“the Council”) has a number of assets that could carry
advertisements in order to promote its own services and support national partner campaigns
that aim to improve the lives of local residents. These assets also provide the opportunity for
local businesses to raise awareness of their products and services in a cost effective and
targeted manner, encouraging residents to support local business, thereby supporting
economic growth.
As part of Council’s commercialisation strategy the Council will seek income via advertising
and sponsorship opportunities, to support its core activities. In order to do this the Council
will look to build commercial relationships with partners and private companies, which do not
conflict with the delivery of its strategic priorities.
The advertising and sponsorship policy details the measures that will provide a framework
for how the Council seeks and accepts advertising and sponsorship from third parties. The
policy aims to protect the Council’s brand and reputation by creating a unified approach to
advertising and sponsorship across all service areas.
The policy relates to advertising and sponsorship opportunities across the Council’s assets
including, but not limited to, services, publications and events.

2. Scope
This policy outlines the general principles which will help the Council to manage the
advertising and sponsorship process.
The policy will apply to all paid for and contra advertising and sponsorship across the
Council’s assets and service areas both directed at employees and directed at the public.
The policy sets out the definitions of advertising and sponsorship and the terms upon which
they will be sought and accepted.
The policy will also provide guidance on suitable advertisers and sponsors and appropriate
advertising and sponsorship content.

Page 99

3. Advertising
Advertising is defined as...
“An agreement between Gedling Borough Council and the advertiser, whereby the Council
receives money or benefit in kind from an organisation or individual in exchange for publicity
in the form of an advertisement in Council controlled media or on Council controlled assets”.
Any advertisement accepted for display in Council controlled media, or on Council assets as
a starting point, must:


adhere to the guidelines set out by the Advertising Standards Agency –
www.asa.org.uk



be in line with the UK Code of Non-broadcast Advertising, Sales Promotion and
Direct Marketing - www.cap.org.uk



follow the Code of recommended practice on Local Authority publicity
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/recommended-code-of-practice-forlocal-authority-publicity.



Comply with the Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008

This is not an exhaustive list, and in addition advertisements must not conflict with the
Council’s values and priorities and must comply with all relevant legislation in relation to
advertising.
4. Sponsorship
Sponsorship is defined as:
“An agreement between Gedling Borough Council and the sponsor, where the Council
receives either money or a benefit in kind for an event, campaign or initiative from an
organisation which gains publicity or other benefits by its association”.
Sponsorship implies a deeper connection between the sponsor and Council than normal
advertising. It is therefore important that careful consideration is given before sponsorship is
offered or accepted by the Council. Potential sponsors must be assessed for their suitability.
The following criteria act as a guide:






Will the sponsorship be detrimental to the Council’s own commercial activity?
Will the sponsorship be detrimental to the Council’s messages?
Will the sponsorship conflict with the Council’s values or priorities?
Is the potential sponsor’s business activity relevant to the event or activity being
sponsored?
Is it reasonable to assume there would be no objections from the public or local
business community to the sponsorship?

Page 100

5. Unacceptable Advertising and Sponsorship
Advertising and sponsorship will not be accepted if it’s considered to be in conflict with the
strategic priorities of the Council. Advertising and sponsorship will not be accepted if it is
considered to cause wide spread offence or controversy or bring the reputation of the
Council into disrepute. Therefore in making the decision, artwork as well as the
product/service being advertised must be considered.
Each advertising and sponsorship opportunity must be considered in relation to its own
circumstances. However, as a guide, the following is considered to be unsuitable
sponsor/advertiser:













Support or promotion of a political party or candidate
Discriminates against people based on protected characteristics
Payday loans or financial products with high interest rates
Tobacco or other smoking paraphernalia including vaping equipment
Third party gambling products/ services or associated activities
Lobby groups
Support or opposition to controversial, sensitive or divisive subjects
Alcohol or illegal drugs
Products that encourage an unhealthy lifestyle
Products/services that are inappropriate for a general audience i.e feature violence,
weapons, sexually suggestive themes or adult content
Cosmetic surgery
Any content that Infringes copyright, patent rights or trademarks
Any content that is likely to expose the council to a claim of disrepute

6. Other considerations
Purchasing advertising or sponsorship must not be viewed as a way to gain favour or
financial or other benefits from the Council or any of its service areas.

7. Procedure
Advertising and sponsorship opportunities will be published on the Council’s Business
Hub and within the Council’s Business e-newsletter. A brochure detailing all of the
Council’s advertising and sponsorship opportunities will be available, upon request, to
interested companies.
The Advertising and Sponsorship Policy will be considered before any advertising or
sponsorship opportunity is sought or accepted. The Director responsible for the relevant
service area, in consultation with the Marketing and Sales Manager, will be responsible
for determining whether a proposal for advertising or sponsorship should be approved.

Page 101

Coordination of advertising and sponsorship agreements across the Council will be the
responsibility of the Marketing and Sales Manager.
Where an advertising or sponsorship proposal relates to a number of services areas,
responsibility for its management will fall to the Director responsible for Sales &
Marketing, in consultation with the Director(s) of the relevant service areas.
The Council reserves the right to review all advertising and sponsorship artwork prior to
acceptance and to decline any advertising it considers to be inappropriate, in conflict with
or detrimental to its strategic priorities.
Where an advertising or sponsorship activity may have planning implication, advice will
be sought from planning control about the consent required.
All those wishing to utilise the Council’s advertising and sponsorship opportunities must
comply with the Council’s terms and conditions for advertising and sponsorship.
8. Fees
Fees will be charged in accordance with the approved Fees & Charges Schedule.
9. Disclaimer
Acceptance of any advertisement or sponsorship does not imply any endorsement of any
particular product or service and the Council accepts no liability for any loss or damage
arising out of or in connection with any advertisement or sponsorship agreement.
The Council reserves the right to refuse to place any advert or accept any sponsorship.
The Council also reserves the right to withdraw any advert or any sponsorship at any
time which is not in accordance with this policy or the terms and conditions of advertising
and sponsorship.

Page 102

Agenda Item 9

Report to Cabinet
Subject:

Gedling Conversation 2018

Date:

2 August 2018

Author:

Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services

Wards Affected
Borough wide.
Purpose
To seek agreement for the programme of activities for the Gedling Conversation
2018.
Key Decision
This is not a key decision.
Background
1.1

In June 2017 we began the fifth annual Gedling Conversation. Gedling
Conversation represents a set of consultations aiming to seek the views of
local residents, businesses and partner organisations about how our
performance has been over the previous years and what our priorities
should be over the coming year.
A combined consultation exercise was organised, using the following
methods:

1.2



Residents’ Satisfaction Survey



Ward visits by Senior Leadership Team and Service Managers
accompanied by Ward Members who were available to attend

The biennial corporate Satisfaction Survey was conducted at the same
time. A paper survey was delivered to each household in the borough and
it could also be completed online. The survey generated a positive
response rate of 3,422 responses, representing 6.7% of households. By
comparison, in 2015 we received 2,271 replies which represented 4.5% of
all households.

Page 103

1.3

As a part of the Gedling Conversation programme, all 19 wards were
visited by Senior Leadership Team, Service Managers and Ward Members
who were available to attend.
Detailed feedback was provided to Cabinet in December 2017 and
members will recall that the main topic for the conversation with residents
during those visits was ‘Life in Gedling’ in general and in their local area.
Members will recall that the most common feedback from the ward visits is
that our residents are satisfied with the Council, its services and the
Borough as a place to live.

1.4

There were several benefits relating to the ward visits:


Organisational development element – the ward walks enabled
Service Mangers and Senior Leadership Team to talk to residents
and find out what residents think about the Council, what their likes
and dislikes were. Their conversation with residents helped Service
Managers to design their Service Plans using more of the customer
centric approach.



Some findings during the ward visits prompted Service Managers to
do further and more in-depth research relating to the problems
reported at a ward level (e.g. reported anti –social behaviour).



The ward visits also encouraged pair or team work as they were
organised in a way that two officers were visiting one ward. It also
gave the opportunity to Service Managers to work with Members
that they hadn’t worked with previously.



Ward visits also allowed Service Managers to approach people and
talk to them, rather than wait to be approached by residents which
was the case previously when this work was focused in front of the
branded tents placed at the main points across the Borough.



Although the ward visits reveal relatively small local issues, they
gave the opportunity to Senior Leadership Team and Service
Managers to prevent those issues from becoming bigger.



Residents could meet officers who work for the council and talk to
them. In this way the Council is made ‘visible’ to residents.

Page 104

Proposal
2.1

2.2

The Satisfaction survey is conducted every 2 years and will take place in
2019. It is proposed that the next wave of Gedling Conversation to be
themed ‘Life in Gedling Borough’ and to include three main parts:


Ward visits



Online focus groups using Facebook



Vlog – ‘Our achievements and our plans’

Ward visits
It is proposed that the conversation with the local residents during the ward
visits will include whether people think that their local area has got better or
worse to live in over the past two years; how satisfied they are with the
local services and amenities in their local area; whether there is enough
suitable housing in the borough; how easy it is to find out about jobs
available locally etc.
A detailed action plan for roadshows and short guidance, together with
statistical data for each ward, for SLT members and Service Managers will
be provided.
It is proposed that the roadshows are held during September 2018. This
will enable any information gathered to feed into service planning for
2019/20.

2.3

Online focus groups using Facebook
The topics for the online focus group should be the same as for the ward
visits – ‘Life in Gedling’
This method will enable us to reach middle aged groups (25 to 55 years
old) that might be too busy to engage in other consultative events that we
have organised so far.
This can be organised as an invitation to local residents to register for a
closed Facebook group live debate. In order to achieve a balanced sample
residents might be asked to complete a short registration form providing
their age group and the area where they live. This will allow us to monitor if
we are reaching most age groups and/or different areas within the
Borough. The Facebook group will be managed and coordinated by
Communications and Service Managers should be available to directly take

Page 105

part in conversation and answer queries.
It is proposed that the online conversation will take place in the evening, to
enable the Council to reach those residents who are unavailable during
normal working hours.

2.4

Vlog - ‘Our achievements and our plans’.
It is proposed that the vlog will include two parts:


A short video about the Council, the Borough and achievements so
far; and



A word from the Leader and Deputy Leader about the future plans

Alternative Options
3.1

The Council could decide not to carry out a further Gedling Conversation
but, given the importance residents clearly attach to the Council listening to
their concerns, such an approach would not fit with residents’ expectations.

3.2

Various techniques and initiatives could be included in the Conversation
programme but on balance it is felt that the proposals set out above
represent the best balance between need and available resource at the
present time.

Financial Implications
4.1

The cost of the activities outlined above can be accommodated from
existing agreed budgets.

Appendices
5.1

None.

Background Papers
6.1

None.

Recommendation
THAT the programme of activities for the Gedling Conversation 2018 be
approved.

Page 106

Reasons for Recommendations
To enable the Council to continue important and effective communication with,
and seek the views of, the residents of the Borough.

Page 107

This page is intentionally left blank

